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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 July 2021

Strategic report

The directors present their strategic report for Brake Bros Limited (“Brakes™) for the year ended 4 July 2021. This report analyses the performance and
explains other aspects of the Brakes Group results and operations, including strategy and risk management.

Review of the business

The Brakes Group is a large European foodservice busil pplying fresh, refrig d and frozen food products, as well as non-food products and
supplies, to foodservice customers ranging from large customers, including leisure, pub, restaurant, hotel and contract catering groups, to smaller
customers, including independent restaurants, hotels, fast food outlets, schools and hospitals. The Brakes Group largest businesses are in the United
Kingdom (UK), France, and Sweden, in addition to a presence in Irefand, Belgium, Spain and Luxembourg.

The Brakes Group supplies a broad variety of products, including a portfolio of pri ly branded p . which are g ity deli d through its
distribution networks, isting of central distribution hubs, satellite depots and its fleet of delivery vehicles. The principal trading companies in the Group
are Brake Bros Limited, Sysco Foods NI Limited, Fresh Direct (UK) Limited. Kent Frozen Foods Limited, Sysco France SAS. Menigo Foodservice AB,
Clafra Aktiebolag AB and EKQ Fagel fisk och mittemellan ABEko Fisk AB.

Summary of results and key performance indicators

Revenue, operating profit, profit after tax, cash g d from operatit and cash are consi to be the key performance indicators for the
Brakes Group.
The resuits for the Brake's Group for the year are set out in the i income on page 8 and a comparison of the results for the year

ended 4 July 2021 is as follows:

Total revenue for the Brakes Group in the year totals £2,602m (2020: £3,501.2m), split as £1,296.4m (2020: £1,991.2m) for the UK (including Ireland),
£827.2m (2020: £998.4m) for "Continental Europe”(France, Spain, Belgium and Luxembourg) and £478.4m (2020: £511.6m) for Sweden in the year.

o] ing loss before ionals in the year are £181.3m (2020: £101.2m operating loss before exceptional items) and the operating loss is £207.8min

P

the year (2020: operating loss £224.8m). The loss after tax in the year is £92.4m (2020: £234.1m loss after tax).

Cash used from operations was £(34.6)m in the year (2020: cash generated £14.2m) and the cash balance at 4 July 2021 is £63.3m (2020: £312.5m).
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 July 2021

Strategic report (continued)
Impact of Covid-19

The circumstances resulting from Covid-19 have had and still do have an impact on the trading performance in the year ended 4 July 2021. However,
with the lifting of Covid 19 tockdown restrictions from the Spring in Europe, the Company and Graup are seeing an increase in operating volumes which is
expected to continue.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group has a risk management programme that seeks to limit the adverse effects of financial risks for the Company and for its idiary

{see the Director's report below for further details). The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Brakes Group relate to a variety of risks that lnclude
competitive risk, the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit risks, commodity price risks and liquidity risk.

- Competitive risk

The European foodservice distribution industry is fragmented and highly competitive, with local, regional, multi-regional distributors and speciality
competitors. New and increasing competition may resuit in increased focus on pricing and on limiting price increases, or may require increased
discounting or other concessians. Such competition or other industry pressures may result in margin erosion and / or make it difficutt for the Group to
attract and retain customers.

- The effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
The Group is exposed to foreign currency exchange risks primarily with respect to Euro, Swedish Krona and the Polish Zioty trade purchases.

- Price risk
Due to the nature of our distribution business, the Group is exposed to potential volatility in fuel prices primarily with respect to diesel purchases. The
price and availability diesel fuel fluctuates due to changes in production, seasonality and other market factors generally outside of our control.

« Interest rate risk
The Group has both interest bearing assets and interest bearing liabilities. Interest rate risk is not considered material for the Group.

« Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Group by failing to discharge an obligation.

« Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in ing its obligati i with fi

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

S Whibley

Director
11 April 2022
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 July 2021

Directors’ report
The directors submit their annual report and the audited consolidated and parent company financial statements for the year ended 4 July 2021.

General information
Brake Bros Limited is a limited company incorporated in England and Wales and domiciled and operating in the United Kingdom. The Company's
subsidiary undertakings operate in France, Sweden and Ireland in addition to a presence in, Belgium, Spain and Luxembourg.

The immediate parent undertaking is Cucina Acquisition (UK) Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wates. The Company's ultimate parent
undertaking and controlling party is Sysco Corporation, a company incorporated in the Unites States.

Future outlook and going concern

In assessing whether the financial statements for the Company and Group should be prepared on the going concem basis, the directors have considered
the future outlook of the Company and of the Brakes Bros Limited Group on a combined basis. The Company's ultimate parent undertaking Sysco
Corporation has confirmed that they will continue to support the Company in order to allow it to satisfy its financial obligations in the nonmal course of
business for a period of 12 months from the date of approval of the balance sheet. The Directors are satisfied that the utimate parent undertaking Sysco
Corporation has the ability to provide this support, should it be required. The Directors of the parent forecast to have sufficient liquidity through the going
concemn period even under its most downside forecast scenario and before any further mitigating actions it may take. The directors are satisfied that the
Company and Group will have sufficient funds to repay its liabilities as they fall due. Ci the s of the Company and Group
are prepared on the going concern basis.

With the lifting of Covid 19 lockdown restrictions from the Spring in Europe, the Company and Group have seen a significant recovery in operating
volumes. Whilst still below pre pandemic levels in the year to 4 July 2021, this improving trend is expected to continue.

Post balance sheet event
No other material events have occurred since the of ial position date which would affect the financial statements of the Company or

Group.

Dividends
During the year no interim dividends were paid by the Company (2020 £nil)) and the directors do not recommend a final dividend (2020 : £nil).

Directors
The directors of the Company wha were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements, unless otherwise stated, are given
below:

S Whibley

A H Karna - resigned 4 July 2021

P F Jackson - appointed 1 March 2022

T Orting Jorgensen - appointed 4 July 2021
M Ball - resigned 27 January 2021

Directors’ third party indemnity provisions

A qualifying third-party indemnity provision as defined in Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 is in force for the benefit of each of the directors in

respect of liabilities incurred asa result of their office, to the extent permitted by law. In respect of those liabilities for which directors may not be
i the C y i a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy throughout the financia! period and to the date of approval of these

financial statements.

Employment report

The Group aims to keep empk aware of all ial factors affecting them as employees and the performance of the Group and their respective
businesses. It encourages good communication through regular meetings and staff, ing senior g to consult and
ascertain employees’ views on all appropriate matters. This is supplemented by regular briefings, intranet and e-mail bulletins and divisional newsletters.
Employees are encouraged to participate in the performance of the Group by way of bonus schemes.

The Group employs over 11,000 people. We provide extensive training and career development programmes. It is our policy to achieve and maintain a
high standard of health and safety at work and to ensure everyone, regardless of race, religion or sex, and including disabled people where reasonable
and practicable, is treated in the same way as regards applications for employment, training, career development and pmmolron Every effort is made to
heip with the rehabilitation of anyone injured during their employment, and to provide support we have an Employ Prog

Health and safety

As a business the Group is strongly committed to providing a safe and responsible place to work. Concem for the wellbeing of our staff is a key element
in our drive to be “a great place to work™ and we demonstrate this commitment through ongoing training and education of all our | working
closely with our insurance providers and equipment suppliers to ensure sharing of best practice and leading edge health and safety solutions.

Directors Duties
The Directors of the Company are required to act in accordance with a set of general duties which are detailed in section 172 of the UK Companies Act
2006. A Director of a Company must act in a way that they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the
benefit of its shareholders as a whote, and fairty, and in doing so have regard (along with other matters) to:

1he likely quence of the isi in the long-term;

the interest of the company's employees;

1he need 1o foster the company s business relfationships with suppliers, customers and others;

1he impact of the company's operalmns on the community and environment;

the desirability of the pany g a reputation for high standards of busi conduct.
The f ing paragraphs st ise how the Di futfil their duties:
Risk Management
The Risk Manag 1t is ished at the Brake Bros Limited group tevel. The Board of Directors of Brake Bros Limited have the
responsibility for setting the risk mar it pelicies, in with Sysco Corporation risk management policies and applied throughout the Brake

Bros Limited group of companies. This framework identifies, monitors, measures and implements strategies to manage and mitigate risk across the
group. Further detail on Financial Risk management are set out further below in our description of Financial Risk Management.

Our people
Our people are the heart of our business. The Company and Group is itted to being a responsil loyer and ing the perf . needs
and of our employ in a fair and transparent manner. The Company and Group op! a number of initiati p ing employee

engagement, health and well being.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 July 2021

Directors’ report (continued)

Business relationships

Qur Customers and suppliers are key to our success. We foster long term relationships with our supplier network, fostering close collaboration and
development of sustainable quality chains of supply. Our relationships with Customers is paramount to the ongoing success of the business. The needs
and expectations of our customers are integral in our business strategy and ptanning to ensure the Company and Group delivers to the highest safety and
high quality standards.

[ ity and envir
Food distribution is not only our business — it is also our best opportunity to make a positive difference in the communities where we operate and live.
The Company and Group participates in a number of Community based programmes to raise money for good causes and provide goods to those in need.

The Company and group is committed to delivering a better tomorrow. In 2019 the Brake Bros Group oi Compames set oul its Corporate and Social
Responsibility goals and targets to continue to reduce the groups carbon footprint and i it to 9 produce.

Shareholders

The Company's ulti parent pany is Sysco Corporation, a Company incorporated in the United States. The Company is aligned to the strategic
vision of the Shareholder and discusses both short term and long term financial performance and business objectives regularly with Sysco management
team.

Financial risk management

The Group has operations in the UK, the Republic of Ireland and Continental Europe including Sweden and has debt financing which exposes it to a
variety of financiat risks that include the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit risks, commodity price risks and
liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors of Brake Bros Limited have the responsibility for setting the risk management policies, in compliance with Sysco Corporation risk
management policies, applied by the Brake Bros Limited group of companies. The policies are implemented by the central group treasury department that
receives regular reports from the operating companies to enable prompt identification of financial risks so that the appropriate actions may be taken.

(a) Foreign currency exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks primarily with respect to the Euro and Swedish Krona although exposure to the Swedish Krona is not
considered material. The Group has certain i in foreign ions, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk.

The Group's operations in the UK and Sweden have inventory purchases denominated in currencies other than their functional currency, such as the
Euro, Polish Zloty and Danish Krone. These inventory purchases give rise to foreign currency exp: the functional currency of each entity and
these currencies. The Group enters into foreign currency forward swap contracts to sell the applicable entity’s functional currency and buy currencies
matching the inventory purchase, which operate as cash flow hedges of the Group's foreign currency-denominated inventory purchases.

(b) interest rate risk
The Group has both interest bearing assets and interest bearing liabilities. The Group'’s interest rate risk primarily arises from flcating interest rate long
term borrowings owed to parent undertakings. Interest rate risk is not considered material for the Group.

(c) Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential
customers before sales commence.

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group's funding is derived from borrowings and amounts funded from parent and group undertakings that are designed to ensure the group has
sufficient available funds for operations and planned expansions. The Group also has access to intercompany funding from parent entities, whom have
access to an extemal Revolving Credit Facility of US$2,000 milion amongst other facilities. The Group also participates in a cash pooling arrangement
with other Sysco Group entities providing additional sources of local liquidity as and when required.

The fall in turnover from the impact of Covid-19 is expected to have an immediate impact on the Company’s liquidity reserves. The group manages
cashflow and liquid reserves centrally and have committed to providing sufficient liquidity to manage through the impact on the Company and Group's
ability to meet its financial commitments.

(e) Commodity price risk
The Group is exposed to commodity price risk primarily with respect to diesel purchases. The Group has in place a risk management programme that
seeks to limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group by using diesel fuel commodity swaps to hedge against future price changes.

Independent auditor
Emst & Young LLP shall remain in office until the Company or Ernst & Young LLP otherwise determine.

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each of the persons who are a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

« so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and

- the director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Page 4



Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 July 2021

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) Statement

Introduction
The below statement contains Brake Bros Ltd annual energy iated relevant g JS€ gas emissi and additional related
, as required under the C ies (Directors’ Report) and Umned Liability Pannersmps (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018.
Methodology
The methodology applied to the calculation of G Gas emissions is the ‘GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard’. An

‘operational control' boundary has been applied. Carbon conversion factors have been taken from ‘UK Govemment GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting — 2021". Emissions are reported as CO2e. Only ‘focation-based’ eleclricity emissions have been reported. Afthough not required
under SECR legislation, we have included fugitive emissions associated with the use of refrigerant gas under Scope 1.

Energy Use and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The table below shows the total annual UK energy use and associated GHG emissions relating to the consumption of; electricity, natural gas, other fuels
combusted on-site, the use of refrigerant gases, and fuel consumed for relevant business transport purposes, for the period 1st July 2020 - 30th June
2021, and a comparison with the previous year.

Table - Energy Consumption and Emissions 2020-21
On-site combustion (MWh)

Electricity (MWh)
Road Transport (MWh)
Total Energy (MWh)

Scope 1 Emissions ({CO,e)

Scope 2 Emissions (tCO,e)

Total Emissions {tCO5e)

Emissions Intensity (tCOze/£m tumover)

Emissions Intensity

For purposes of baselining and ongoing pari it is required to express the emissions using a carbon intensity metric. The intensity metric chosen is
£m turnover (UK and Ni). The resultant emissions intensity is 53.11CO2e/Em.
Energy Efficiency Action

in this financial year we have continued to closely monitor and manage our energy consumption in-line with Energy Management System 1SO50001,
which the majority of our UK operations are accredited to. In addition, our LED lighting installation programme has continued throughout the year, with
another four sites having undergone a lighting upgrade. During the current reporting period, over 20% of our icity was purchased from

sources. In comparison with the previous year, we have seen an overall drop in emissions of 26%. This is primarily due to the impact of Covid-19 resulting
in a reduction in business activity, particularly in refation to the transportation of goods. However, this did resuilt in an increase in our emission intensity

from 45.7 to 53.11COZ2e/Em,

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial in e with i law and 1S.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that law the directors have prepared the group and
parent company financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under
company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suilable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applit IFRSs as ad d by the Europ Union have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

« prepare the group ts on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company and the group will continue in
business.
The directors are re ible for keeping ing records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose

with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are atso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imegularities.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Company registration number: 02035315

1 Registered office:
Enterprise House
Eureka Business Park
Ashford

S Whibley
Director . Kent
11 April 2022 TN25 4AG
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Brake Bros Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Brake Bros Lm-uted (‘the parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’} for the year ended 4 July 2021
which comprise the i income it, the of comprehensive income, the consalidated and company statements of
financial position, the i and company of changes in equity, the consoli and y of cash flows and the related
notes 1 to 30, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable faw and Intemational Accounting Standards in conformity with the requi its of the Campanies Act 2006 and, as regards the parent
company financial statements, as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion:

- the financiat statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at 4 July 2021 and of the group's loss for the year
then ended;

+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Intemational Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006;

« the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Intemational Accounting Standards in conformity with th
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 20086; and

-the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in ce with Ir ional on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those

are further i in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethica!
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the gaing concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concem for a period of at least twelve months from when the
financial statements are autherised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the ibilities of the di with respect to going concem are described in the relevant sections of this report. However,
because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s abifity to continue as a going concem.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The
directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infc ion is ially inconsi with the fi ial

or our knowledg obtalned in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be matenally mlsslated ¥ we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent i we are requi to ine whether there is a in the fi al s
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material mi: t of the other inf ion, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

|n our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements; and

- the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in with licable legal requil

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not
identified i in the gic report or directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

« the parent financial ts are not in ag with the accounting records and retums; or

+ certain di of dil ! ified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanatlons we require for our audit.

P ilities of di S
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial the di are ible for g the group’s and the parent company’s ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using !he going concem basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic attemative but to do so.
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Brake Bros Limited
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Brake Bros Limited {continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or ervor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or emor and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financia! statements.

Explanation o3 to what oxtent the audit was ids capable of ing i iti ing fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined
above, to detect irregutarities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from eror, as fraud may involve deli by, for ple, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through coliusion. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting imegularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the
prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with govemance of the entity and management.

-We obtained an understanding of the lega! and regulatory that are i to the company and determined that the most significant are
those that refate to the reporting framework (Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, Companies Act 2006, Bribery Act 2010 and relevant tax
compli regulations in the jurisdiction in which the Company operates.

~We understood how the Company is complying with those frameworks by making enguiries of management and observing the oversight of those
charged with govemance. We corroborated our enquiries through the review of the following documentation:

- all minutes of board meetings held during the year; and

- any relevant correspondence with local tax authorities;

+We assessed the susceptibility of the Company’s financial to i i including how fraud might occur by gaining an
understanding of the entity level controls and policies that the Company applies. In doing so we focused on the gnition risk and desi and
executed it audit proced! to the risk of material misstatement. placing emphasis an testing of supplier and customer rebates.,

- Based on this understanding we designed our audit pr to identify nor pliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures invalved a
focus on large or unusual transactions as well as enquiries of intemal counsel and management.

A further di iption of our resgor it for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
https:/iwww.{rc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’'s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

{MG’( L VWA? ep

Lloyd Brown (Senior statut
for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 4 July 2021

Restated
For the year For the year
ended ended
28 June
4 July 2021 2020
Note £m £m
Loss for the year (92.4) {234.1)
Other comprehensive income / {(expense):
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 1441 4.3
Taxation on items taken directly to other comprehensive
income 4 (2.8) -
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 11.3 4.8
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Cash flow hedges - gains / (losses) arising in the year 22 16 (1.8)
Taxation on cash flow hedges 22 (0.1) 0.2
Currency translation differences 22 24 0.5
Total items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 3.9 {1.1)
Other comprehensive income for the year, Net of tax 15.2 3.7
Total comprehensive expense for the year (77.2) (230.4)
Total comprehensive expense for the period attributable to owners of the parent company (77.2) (230.4)
Total comprehensive expense for the period attributable to non-controlling interests - -
Total comprehensive expense for the year (77.2) (230.4)

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 9



Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 July 2021

Consolidated income stat it

For the year ended 4 July 2021

Restated
For the year For the year
ended ended
28 June
4 July 2021 2020
Note £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 2,602.0 3,501.2
Operating costs (2,809.8) (3.726.0)
Operating loss 2 (207.8) {224.8)
Finance costs 3 (23.5) (22.8)
Finance income 3 135 13.0
Finance cost - net {10.0) (9.8)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (217.8) (234.6)
Income tax credit 4 1254 0.5
Loss for the year after taxation (92.4) (234.1)

Loss attributable to owners of the company:
Owners of the parent company 22 (92.4) (234.1)
Non-controliing interest -

(92.4) (234.1)

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The Company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 to not present the parent company income statement. The loss
for the parent company for the year was £97.5m (2020: £41.6m loss).

Page 8
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Consolidated statement of financial position

At 4 July 2021

4 July 2021 28 June 2020
Note £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 6 189.2 191.2
Intangible assets 7 86.4 854
Property, plant and equipment 8(a) 673.9 667.3
Investments 9 (a) 0.2 -
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 16 (c) 0.1 6.9
Trade and other receivables 1 - 34
Deferred tax assets 18 171.0 494
1,120.8 997.6
Current assets
Inventories 10 203.2 210.2
Trade and other receivables i 7499 9719
Cash and cash equivalents 12 63.3 3125
Current income tax assets 14 4.9 2.1
1,021.3 1,496.7
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities - borrowings 15 (119.8) {726.0)
Financial liabilities - derivative financial instruments 16 (c) {0.1) (2.4)
Lease obligations 15 (45.9) (53.2)
Trade and other payables 13 (879.9) (802.2)
Current income tax liabilities 14 {0.4) (0.2)
Provisions 18 (3.4) {5.7)
(1,049.5) (1.589.7)
Net current liabilities (28.2) (93.0)
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities - borrowings 15 - -
Lease Obligations 15 {309.8) (283.0)
Retirement benefit obligations 17 (84.2) (103.2)
Deferred tax liabilities 19 (6.9) (8.3)
Provisions 18 (34.2) (31.7)
(435.1) (426.2)
Net assets 657.6 478.4
Equity
Share capital 20 54 54
Share premium 21 288.6 308
Other reserves 22 367.8 363.9
Retained eamings / (loss) 22 (4.2) 78.3
Total equity 657.6 478.4

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 43 were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 April 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

S Whibley
Director
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Brake Bros Limited

Annual report and financial statements

For the year ended 4 July 2021

Company statement of financial position

At 4 July 2021

4 July 2021 28 June 2020
Note £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 6 28.2 28.2
Intangible assets 7 272 19.6
Property, plant and equipment 8 (a) 2845 295.5
Deferred tax assets 19 64.2 423
investments in subsidiaries 9 836.8 4148
Trade and other receivables 1 - 104.8
1,240.9 905.2
Current assets
Inventories 10 73.6 758
Trade and other receivables " 567.8 959.3
Cash and cash equivalents 12 8.7 264.5
650.1 1,299 .6
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities - borrowings 15 (251.9) (858.1)
Lease obligations 15 (14.5) (15.8)
Financial liabilities - derivative financial instruments 16 (c) - (1.3)
Trade and other payables 13 (603.1) (501.0)
Provisions 18 (2.2) (2.8)
(871.7) (1.379.0)
Net current liabilities {221.6) (79.4)
Non-current liabilities
Lease obligations 15 (161.6) (161.0)
Retirement benefit obligations 17 (30.3) (48.9)
Provisions 18 (24.6) (23.5)
(216.5) (233.4)
Net assets 802.9 592.4
Equity
Share capital 20 5.4 5.4
Share premium 21 2886 308
Other reserves 22 4278 389.6
Retained eamings 22 811 166.6
802.9 592.4

Total equity

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 43 were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 Apri) 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

e

S Whibley
Director

Company registration number: 02035315



Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 July 2021

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attributable to owners of the parent company

Share Non-
premium Other Retained controlling
Share capital account reserves eamings Total interests  Total equity

Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 July 2019 5.4 30.8 365.0 306.5 707.7 0.1 707.8
Impact of adoption of IFRS 16 . 22 - - - 2.7 2.7 - 2.7
Comprehensive income
(Loss) for the year 22 - - - (234.1) (234.1) - (234.1)
Other comprehensive income / (expense)
Cash flow hedges 22 - - (1.8) - {1.8) - (1.8)
Taxation on cash flow hedges 22 - . - 0.2 - 0.2 - 0.2
Long term incentive plan charge 22 - - - (1.6) (1.6) (1.6)
Currency translation differences . 22 - - 0.5 - 0.5 - 0.5
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 - - - 4.8 4.8 - T 48
Taxation on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income 4 - - - - - - -
Total other comprehensive income / (expense) - - (1.1) 32 2.1 - 2.1
Total comprehensive income / (expense} - - (1.1) (228.2) (229.3) - {229.3)
Balance at 28 June 2020 5.4 308 363.9 78.3 478.4 0.1 478.5
impact of adoption of IFRS 16 22 . - - 0.2) (0.2) - 0.2)
Comprehensive (expense) / income
(Loss) for the year 22 - - - (92.4) (92.4) - (92.4)
Other comprehensive income / (expense) - -
Cash flow hedges 22 - - 16 - 1.6 - 16
Taxation on cash flow hedges 22 - - (0.1) - 0.1) - (0.1)
Long term incentive plan charge 22 - - - (1.2) (1.2) - (1.2)
Currency translation differences 22 - - 24 - 24 - 24
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 - - - 141 141 - 141
Taxation on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income / (expense) 19 - - - (2.8) (2.8) - (2.8)
Total other comprehensive income / {(expense) - - 39 10.1 14.0 - 140
Total comprehensive income / (expense) - - 3.9 (82.5) {78.6) - (78.6)
Issue of share premium - 2578 - . 257.8 - 2578
Balance at 4 July 2021 5.4 288.6 367.8 (4.2) 657.5 0.1 657.6

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 July 2021

Company statement of changes in equity

Attributable to owners of the parent

company
Share
premium Other Retained
Share capital account reserves eamings Total equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 July 2019 5.4 308 390.6 201.7 628.5
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year 22 - - - (41.6) (41.6)
Other comprehensive income / (expense)
Cash flow hedges 22 - - (1.2) - (1.2)
Taxation on cash flow hedges 22 - - 0.2 - 0.2
Long term incentive plan charge . 22 - - - (1.1) (1.1)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 - - - 8.1 8.1
Taxation on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income 19 - - - (0.5) {0.5)
Total other comprehensive income / (expense) - - (1.0) 6.5 5.5
Total comprehensive income / {(expense) - - (1.0) (35.1) (36.1)
Balance at 28 June 2020 54 308 389.6 166.6 5924
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year 22 - - - (97.6) (97.6)
Other comprehensive income / (expense)
Capital contribution received 22 - - 37.0 - 37.0
Cash flow hedges 22 - - 14 - 1.4
Taxation on cash flow hedges 22 - - {0.2) - (0.2)
Long term incentive plan charge 22 - - - (0.2) (0.2)
Actuariat gains on defined benefit pension
scheme 17 - - - 15.1 151
Taxation on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income 19 - - - (2.8) (2.8)
Total other comprehensive income/ (expense) - - 38.2 12.1° 50.3
Total comprehensive income / (expense) - - 38.2 (85.5) (47.3)
Issue of share premium 257.8 257.8
5.4 288.6 427.8 81.1 802.9

Balance at 4 July 2021

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 July 2021
Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 4 July 2021

For the year ended 4 July For the year ended 28
2021 June 2020

Note £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (used in) / generated from operations 23 (33.6) 142
Analysed as:
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 284 829
Exceptional items (62.0) (68.7)
Interest paid . {0.5) (2.6}
Income tax paid {4.7) -
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (38.8) 116
Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (46.0) (91.1)
Purchase of intangible assets (21.1) (32.7)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 2.8 6.5
Sale of interest in subsidiary, net of cash transferred 3.7) -
Net cash used in investing activities (68.0) (117.3)
Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities
Proceeds from issues of shares/other securities 257.7 -
Payments from / (to) parent undertakings 255.2 (243.5)
Payments from related undertakings 8.6 28.5
(Repayment) / Proceeds of/from extema! borrowings (600.0) 600.0
Lease capital repayments (62.3) (57.9)
Net cash (used in) / from financing activities {140.8) 327.1
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (247.6) 2214
Cash and cash equivalents at 28 June 2020/ 1 July 2019 12 3125 911
Effects of exchange rate changes (1.6) -
Cash and cash equivalents at 4 July 2021/ 28 June 2020 12 63.3 3125

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 July 2021
Company statement of cash flows

For the year ended 4 July 2021

For the year ended 4 July For the year ended 28

2021 June 2020

Note £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 23 51.3 6.8
Analysed as:
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 63.9 185
Exceptional items (12.6) (11.7)
Interest paid 0.4 (4.1)
Net cash generated from operating activities 51.7 27
Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (13.2) (29.4)
Purchase of intangible assets (12.7) (9.0)
Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 2.8 1.3
Net cash used in investing activities (23.) (37.1)
Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities
Capital contribution to subsidiary company (362.5) -
Payments (to) / from parent undertakings 410.9 (323.7)
Payments from related undertakings 84 32
Loans’(to) group undentakings (135.3) -
Loans (to) parent undertakings (10.2) -
Payments from group undertakings 169.8 175
(Repayment) / Proceeds offfrom extemal borrowings (600.0) 600.0
Proceeds from issue of shares 257.7
Lease capital repayments (23.2) (17.2)
Net cash (used in) / from financing activities (284.4) 279.8
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (255.8) " 2454
Cash and cash equivalents at 29 June 2020 / 1 July 2018 12 264.5 i9.1
Cash and cash equivalents at 4 July 2021 / 28 June 2020 12 8.7 264.5

The notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 Juty 2021

Notes to the financial statements
1. Accounting poficies (continued)

Intangible assots

(0} Goodwil
Goodwil reprosent the excess of the cost of an acquisiion aver the fair vakue of the Group's share of the not klentftable assats of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwid on acqui of subsidiaries is inctuded in
‘intangible assats’. Gooswilis nol subject to annual amortisation but is instead tested annually for impairment and caried at cost le: losses. Impairment losses on goodwil are ot reversed,

Goodwil is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The aflocation is mada o those cash-generaling unils that ara expected to benefil from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.

(b) Camputar software
Acquired camputer seftware licences are capitalised as an intangible asset on the basis of the costs incurred (0 acquire and bring into use the specific software. Directly costs i with the of software that are

expecled ta generata future ecanamic benefits arg capitatised as part of computer software.

Where softwate costs are capitaised they are amortised using the straight-ine basis to write them down to their estimated reatisable value over heir estimated useful economic lives, which are considerad to be between three and five years.
The residual vatue and useful economi life are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate at each statement of financial position date,

{c} Customer conracts and refationships
Customer ists and customer contracts and relationships are acquired separataly of as part of a business combination.

For those customer fists and customer contracts or refationships acquired separately, an intangible asset is recognised on the basis of the costs 1o acquire the customer lists and customer contracts and relationships together with any directly
attibutable costs of acquiring the asset.

For those customer lists and customer coniracts and relationships acquired as part of a business combination, the fai vakie of the assal is recognised at the date of the acquisition, in accordance with IFRS 3.

Customer lists and customer contracts and relationships are amortisad on  siraight kne basis over their expected useful economic ves, which are consiiered to be between 3 and 11 years. These are assumed to have no residual vaiue at the
end of their expected usaful econamic kfe.

(d) Brands
Brands are acquired separataly or as part of @ business combination. For those brands acquired saparately, an intangible asset is recognised on the basis of the costs to acquire the brands togother with any directly attributable costs of
acquiring the asset. For those brands acquired as part of a business combination, the fair value of the assel is recognised at the date of the acgquisition, in accordance with IFRS 3,

Brands are amortised on a straight-tine basis over their expected useful econemic lives, which are considered 1o range from 10 to 25 years. These are assumed (o hawe no residual vakue at the end of their expected useful economic ke,

Asset bives and residua! vakues are reviewed during each financial period. An assel's carrying amount is wiitten davim immediately to its recoverable amount f the assel’s camying amourd is greater than its eslimated recoverable amount,

Impainment of non-financial asaots
Assets that have an indefinite usefu! economic kfe are not subjoc! [ smmisanan and are tested annuaky for impaimnent. Assets thal are subjec! to amortisation are revewed for imparment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the canrying amount may not be loss is for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount w:oodsﬂs recoverable amount. Tho recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs to sed and value in use. For the purposas of assasmg imparment, assats are grouped at the lowest lovels for which there are sep: y h flows ing units).

inventories

inventories are siated at the lower of cost and net realisable vakie. Provision is made for obwhle and sbw-mwng items. Cosl comprises direct purchase costs and overheads that have been incumed in bringing the inventories to ther present
location and candition. Net reatisable tod seling price les costs of and costs to be incurmed in marketing, seling and distribution.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at (air vakie and subsequently measured at amortised cost lass provision for impairment. A provision for impairment is eshhhs'md when mem is objective .mem that the Gmnp will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the origina! terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtar, probabiity that the debtor will enter and defaul or payments (more than 2
months overdus) are considerad indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amouni of the provision is the difference between the asset's camying amount and the present value of estimated futuro cash flows, discountad at the original
effactive interest rate. The camying amount of the asset is reduced through l.hs use of a trado receivables impaiment account, and the amount of the loss Is recognised in the consolidated income statement within direct purchase cost. When a
trade receivable is uncollectable it is written off against the trade account, f amounts ~ written off are credited in the consotidated income statemenl,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank (being the cash book balance) and in hand, short-term deposits and other short-term highty liquid investments with original maturitias of three montha of less held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments. Bank overdrafts are presented in current Eabiities to the extent that there is no right of offsat with cash batances.

Current and deferred income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the Inx taws enn:ted or substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial position. Management periodically evakuates positions taken i tax retums with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to i and provisions where on the basis of amounts expacted to be paid to the tax suthorities.

Oeferrad income tax is provided in full, using the kabikty method, on temparary differences arising between the tax base of assets and kabiities and their camying amounts in the financiaf statements. Howaver, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an assat or kiabilty in a other than a b that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) thal have been enacted or substantially enactad by the date of the statement of financial position and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax assat is realised. Deferred income tax Is measured on
an undiscounted basis.

Deferred tax assots are recognised o the extant that it is probable that taxable profits wil be awailable against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 July 2021

Notes to the financial statements
1. Accounting policies (continued)

Employce benefits
Retirement benefit obligations
The Group has both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

Defined bonafit pension plans
Foliowing the amendment lo 1AS 19 Employee Benefits msued in December 2004 and subsequently revised in June 2011, the Group has adopled an accounting palicy whereby actuarial gains and lkesses for defined benefit pension schemes.
are taken through the statement of income in full @ach period, and the full ceficit an an IAS 19 basis is included within the censalidated statemenl of financial position.

In the UK the Group operates a defined benefil funded pension scheme covering a number of its employees. The scheme is @ cantracted oul defined beneft scheme, providing final satary related benefils accrued for each year of sarvce. The
scheme was mads fully paid up a1 31 December 2003 and no further benefits are accruing to members subsequent to this date, In acdition, in Brakes Continental Eurape Division and Sweden the Group is iable for cenain post emplayment
tenefits which meel the cniteria of a defined benefil ptan, These obligations are of an unfunded nature,

The charge in the consolidatad income statement in respect of the defined benefil pension plans comprises a net interes! expense Imwme ulcm:lad as the product of the ne! defined benefit §iabilty / asse! and the discount rale as determined
at the beginning of the period. The net interest expense / income is recognised in finance costs / income. costs are income.

The kabilty recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of the defined benefit pension scheme is the present vakie of the defined benefit obligatian at the date of the statement of financial position less the fair vale of the plan
assets. The ndependent actuary, using the projected unit credit method and assumptions agreed with the trustees and diractors, cakulates the defined benefit obligation annuafy. The present ke of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows using interest rates of high-guality corporate bonds that have terms to maturity approximating 1o the tems of the retated pension liabiity,

The defined benefit pension obligation has been cakulated by the scheme actuary for each reporting date, using the projected unit credil method and assumptions agreed with the Group (see note 17 to the financial statements),

Actuanal gains and losses arise Mo L i {the effects af between previous actuarial assumptions and what has actualy occurred) and changes in actuarial assumptions, Actuaria) gains and lossas are recognised
i ful, in the period they occur, in the statemen of comprehensive income,

Dofinod contribution plans
For defined contribution plans, the Group par to s ini pension plans on a contractual basis. The Group has no further payment obiigations ance the contributions have been paid. The contributions are

p pays
recognised as an employes benefit expense when they are due,

Provisions
Prowsions are formed far legally enforceabla or constuctive obligations existing on the date of the statement of financial position, the sattement of which is ikely to require cutflow of resources and the extent of which can be reliably estmated.

Where the financial provisions are di: over the life of their expectad cash flows.

Trado payables and other payzbles
Trade payables are non interast-bearing and are siated a1 amortised cost.

Foreign currencies
Items inctuded in the financial statements of the Group's subsidiary companies are measured using the curmency of the primary economic environment in which the subsidiary operntes (‘the functional currency’). The consolidsted financial

slatements are presented in sterfing, which is the Group's presentationa currency.

Foreign currency transactions are anstated into the functional cumency using the exchange rates prevaiing at the dates of the transactions. Monatary assets and kabiities denominated in foreign cumrencies are transiated into the relevant
tunctional currency at the rates of exchange ruling al the date of the consolidated statement of financial position. Oifferences arising on transtation are charged or credited to the consolidated income statement except when deferred in equity as
quaifying cash flow hedges or qualdying net investment hedges.

The income statements of foreign subsidiary companies are transtated into stering at monthly average exchange rates for the Euro and Swedish Krona at 1.128 (2020: 1.14) and 11.54 (2020: 12.14) respectivly and the statements of financial
position are transiated ai the exchange rates miﬂg nl the date of the statements of financial position being 1.17 {2020: 1.10) for Euros and 11.85 {(2020: 11.57) for Swedish Krona. On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
of the net i in foreign and of i L as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. These exchange differences are disciosed as @ separate component of shareholders

equity within other reserves.

Goodwil and fair vakie adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and iabilities of the foreign entity and transiated at the closing rate.

Borowings and finance ceats
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value (being the issue proceeds), ess attributatle tansaction costs.

Bomrowings are subsequently measured al amortised casl using the eflactive interest method. Amortised cosl is adjusted for the bs of any lion costs. The bon is i in fimance costs. Transaction costs are
amortized over the expected tarm of the retated financial instruments.

Al bomowings. denominated in cuencies ather than sterting are transtated at the rate nuiing at the statemaent of financial position date.

Borrowings are classifled as cunent liabilities uniess the Group has an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at feast welve months aftar the statement of financial position date.

Finance income
Finance incoma is recognised on o time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the financial statements

8 (0). Proporty, ptant and oquipment (continuod)

Information
Land and Mator Plant and technology
buidings vehicies equipment hardware Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
Al 28 June 2020 2436 1319 762 224 4734
Rectassification . - 0.3} 28 286
Additions. 18.7 57 33 24 7.0
Disposals [CX)] {15.4) (8.8) {2.3) (30.6)
At 4 July 2021 255.2 1214 70.5 25.4 4725
Accumutatod doprociation
At 26 June 2020 49.9 54.7 55.8 17.7 177.9
Redassification - . 0.2) 29 27
Charge for the year 135 13.8 50 31 353
Disposats 3.7) (13.4) {86) (2.3) {280
At 4 July 2021 59.7 55.1 518 21.4 188.0
Not book vatuo at 4 July 2021 195.4 66.4 18.8 39 2845
Information
tLand and Motor Plant and technology
buidings vehicles equipment hardware Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
Al Jdy 2019 828 1338 788 24.4 3194
tmpact of adoption of IFRS 16 153.7 (9.4) 0.2 (28) 1417
Additions 71 1.8 26 11 2.4
Disposals - 4.7) (12.1) (0.3) (7.1
At 28 June 2020 243.6 1311 76.3 22.4 4734
Accumulated depreciation
At1 iy 2018 30.1 615 54,2 EEA 1628
impact of adoption of IFRS 16 1.6 (1.3) . (2.9) (12.6)
Charge for the year 8.2 153 [-A) 38 4.4
Disposals - (10.8} {4.7) {0.3) (15.8)
A1 28 Juno 2020 49.9 54.7 55.8 17.7 177.9
Net book vatue at 28 June 2020 183.7 78.4 2.7 a7 2055
Land and buiklings comprise;
At 4 July At 28 June
2021 2020
£m £m
Cost
Freehold 84,4 185
Long leazehoid 155
Shot leacehold 170.8 209.8
255.2 2438
Accumutated doproclation
Frechold n3 (X
Long leasehold 58
Short jenzehoid 20.4 37.2
59.7 49.9
The Company leases many assets inchuding praperty, vehicles and equipment, included within total tangible assets are tho following Right-cf-uze ascets ised in with [FRS 18 “Leases”.
information
Plant and tochnology  Total Right of
Right-of-uso assots Land and buildings Motor Vohicloa oquipmont hardware Uso assats
€m &m &m &m &m
Balance at 26 June 2020 1917 12.0 0.1 LX:] 155.4
Additions to right-cf-use assets 13.4 08 . - 1.9
Depraciation (10.8) (3.4) . {0.5) (147
Disposaty - (1.5) - - {1.5)
Balanco at 4 July 2021 144.0 8.9 0.1 0.1 153.0
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For the year ended 4 July 2021

Notes to the financial statements
1. Accounting policies (continued)

(c) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats with 1 interests as th equity owners of the Group, For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recarded in equity. Gains or ln:uus on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have contral or significanl influence, any ratained interast in the entity is romeasured to its fair value. with the change in camying amount recagnised in the consolidated income statement. The fair vatue is the initial
carrying amount for the purpases of subsequently accaunting for the retained interesl in the associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addilion. any amounts previously recogmsed in other oomprehenswa income in respect of that entity are

accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the retated assets or labiities, This may mean that amounts greviousty ised in other ive income are to the income statemant,

if the ownership in an associals is reduced bul significant influence is retained. only a proportionata sharg of the amounts previously It in othar ive income are i to the i income statement where
appropriate.

Revenue

The Group generates revenue primarily from the distribution and sale of f0od and related Products 1o its all revenue is ot the point in time in which the produci is delivered to the customer. The company
grants certain customers sales incentives, such as rebates or discounts, which could result in varsiable i ion. The variabla K ion is based on amounts known at the time the performance obligation is satisfied and, therefare,

require minimal judgment, Revenue is recognised at the transaction price net of any sales incentives, rabates or discounts which is agreed at contract inception.

Buying income
Buying income is received from suppliers as a discount against the cost of products and services purchased. Discounts can take the form of banded overriders emed on purchase levels, marketing income, or product specific rebates. The

credit is recognised in the income statement either against direct purchase cost or other costs and inventory is revatued to reflact the lower value after discount, Buying income is inwiced to or credited from suppliers throughout the period, and
at the period end any remaining receivable is recorded in line with suppiier amangement terms and management estimates based on confimations from suppliers and contracts.

Govemmant Grants

are ised where thers i that the grant wil be received and all aitached conditions will be comptied with. When the grant relates to an expensa item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the retated costs, for which il is intanded to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful ife of the related asset.

Exceptional items
Where items of income and expense incuded in the consolidated income slatemen, including lossas in respect of businesses exited or being exited are considered to be material and / or outside the normal course of business, separate

disctosure of their nature and amoun is provided in the cansolidated financial statements, These items are classified as exceptional items. The Group considers the size and nature of an item both individually and when aggregated with smilar
items, when considering whether it is material,

Propesty, plant and oquipmem

Property, plant and is shown at historical cost less bon and
Cos! reprasents inwoiced cost plus any other costs mlm directly attributable to the acquisition of the item. The Group capitatises bomowing costs directly to the i jon or of 3 quaiifying asset as part of
the cost of that asset. The Group ch: b o the income statement for non-qualfying assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assel’s camying amount of recognised as a separato assel, as appropriate, only when it is probabie that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the itam can
be refably measured. Al other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

No depreciation is prowded on freehok] land.

Depreciation is provided on all other property, plant and equipment to write down their cost or, whera their useful economic ivas have been revised, thei camying amount at the date of revision to their estimated residual values on a straight ine
basis over the periods of their estimated, of ravisad, remaining useful economic lives respectively, Thesa lives are considered to be:

Freehold buildings - between 17 and 40 years

Leasehold buidings ~ the period of the lease or 40 years whichever is the shorter
Mator wehicles - between 5 and 12 years

Ptant and equipment + between J and 40 years

Infarmation technaiogy hardwars - belween 3 and 5 years

Assel fvas and residual vales are reviewed each financial period.

An assel’s caying amount is written down immediately to is recoverable amount if the assel’s carying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount,

Profits and losses on dispasals are determined by comparing the proceeds with th camying amount and are recognised within the consolidated income statement.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classifled as hekd for sale are measured at the lower of thelr carrying amount and fair value 1833 costs to cof. Non-Current assets are classified as held for sale if their camying amount will ba recovered through o sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is met only when the sale s highty probable and the asset is avaiable for immediate sale in its present condition, Management must be committed 1o the sale which should be
expected to take place within one year from the date of rectassification.

Invesnnenb in sllhslﬂlades
ies held as assets are for ai cost less any provision for impairment in value. If the diractors consider that the fair value of investments in subsidiaries are below their camrying vahie then a provision
for |mpawman\ would be made.
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Brake Bros Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 4 July 2021

Notes to the financial statements
1. Accounting policies (continued)

Financial assots
The Group classifies its financial assats in the folowing category. loans and receivables. The classification is based on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. ines the of its financial assets al

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments thal are not quoled in an active mame!. They are included in current assets, excepl for maturities greater than 12 months afler the date of the
statement of financial position, These are classified as non-current assels, The Group's loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’ and cash and cash equivalents in the slatement of financia) position.

Derivative financia Instruments.
The Group usaes derivative financial instruments, principally cammodily swaps to hedge the diesal price and interest rate caps to manage the interest rate rish on interest payments. The Group daes rot use dervative fnancial instruments for
speculative pusposes.

Derivatives are initialy recognised a! fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and subsequently re-measured al fair \akue. The method af recognising the resulting gain of loss depends on whather the derivative is designated as
a hedging instrument, and if 50, the nature of the item being hedged, The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

- hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liabiity or a highly probablo forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge)
- hedges of a nat investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge).

The Group documents at or near 1o the incepton of the ion the ip between hedging i and hedged items, 85 wel 25 its rish manogement objectives and strategy for ing varous hedging i The
Group also documents its assessment, bath at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items.

The fair value of derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 18 (b). Movements on the hedging reserva in shareholders’ equity are shown in note 22, The full tair value of a hedging defative is classified as a non-
current asset or Kability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than one year and as a cument asset or liabiity when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than one year.

{a} Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the fair vaiue of derhatives that are designated and quaify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income, The gain of loss relating to the ineffective portian is recognised immediatety in
‘finance costs - nat’ in the consobdated income statement.

Amoums al:cumulawd in aquay are racw!ed in the consolidated income statement in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss. The gain or loss relating to the effective pemon of interest mm swaps nedgng vanable rnte
income statement within Yinance costs - net’, The gain or koss relating to the ineffective portion of interest rate swaps hedging \ariable rate is

smamanlwlmm ‘inance wsls net',

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or where a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity al that ime rem:ms in equwy and is vecogmsed when lhe forecast transaction is.
ultimatety recagnised in the consafidalad income statemant, When  forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is i income statement
within ‘finance costs - net.

(b) Netinvestment hedge
Hedges of nel in foreign jons are for simiarty to cash fiow hedges.

Any gain or 088 On the hedging nstrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in equity. The gain o loss relating to the ineflective portion is ised i iately in the Z income statement within finance
costs - net’. Gains and 10sses accumulated in equity are inctuded in the consolidated income statement when the foreign operation is partially disposed of or soid.

Share capital
Where the Company issues shares or other financial instruments, thesa financial instruments are classified as a financial tabikty, financial assel or equity according to the substance of the " its pants.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in the same respective category to which the costs relate. Dividends or interest arising on such financial instruments are recognised m:ccldhu to the classification of
the financial instrument.

Share based poyments
Certain Group employees are members of a share based payment amangemeni provided by Sysco Corporation. Cash sattled share based payments to certain employees are measured at the fair \akie of the equity insuments at the grant
date using a Black-Scholes option pricing mode). The fair value of the chare based payment is expensed on an accelerated basis to raflect the vesting 2s it occurs over the requisite sarvice period over the duration of the award, The requisite
service period Is generally the period which the employee is required to provids senice in exchange for the award. A abity is recognised, measured initialy at the fair vakie of the liabiity. At each balance sheet date untl the kabiity is setted,

and at the date of satiement, the fair value of the Eabiity is with any ges o fair value ised in the income statement,

Critica and

The Group makes j d ing the future. Tha resulting accounting estimates wi, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resutts, The judgements and key sources of estimation that have a significant risk of
causing material adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and liabilties within the next financial period are discussed below.

(8} imparmant raview of goodwill

The Gmup lnau annualy whalhel goodwill has suflered Any i loss, in with the ing pelicy stated above. The amounts of cash- ling units {CGUs) have been datarmined based on \alue-n-use
ese require the use retation to h flows and suilable discount rates as disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements. Actual outcomes could vary from thesa estimates.
A sensitivty analysis has on the key tions used for assessing the goodwil. The directors’ impak of the impax and ithity ysis are disclosad in note 6to the financial statements.

{b) Impairment reviow of trands and customer contracts and relationships
In addition to testing annually whether goodwill has suffered any impa¥ment the Group also tests annually for brands and customar contracts and relationships to sea d they have suffered any impairment.

A sensitivity analysis has been parformed on the key assumptons used for assessing the brands and customer contracts and relationships. The directors have concluded thal for the UK and Ireland, France and Sweden there is no impasment
because they have headroom of recowerable amounts in excess of camying vakies and it is considered that there are no reasonably possible changes in key assumptions which would caute the carrying amount of brands and customer
contracts and retationships to exceed the \alug-in-use.

{c} Employas benafits - defined pension obligation

One of the key assumptions used in determining the vakiation at 4 July 2021 is the UK discount rato of 1.9%. Whist the directors consider that the adoption of a 1.9% discouni rate is appropriate i the rate used had bean 0.2% higher of lower
the retirement benefit obligation would have been approximately £9.0m lower or higher. Another key assumption used in determining the vakiation is the mortasty assumption. If the average kfe expectancy in years of pensioner retiring was 1
year higher or lower than that used in the vahuation the retrement benefit obligation would have been approximately £9.7m higher o lower.
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Notes to the financial statoments
1. Accounting policies (continued)

{d} Income taxes - deforred taxation

The group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions, Significant judgment is required in determining the group's provision for deferred taxation. There are certain terms for which tha ullimate tax determination is uncertain. The group
recognises kabilties and assels for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additonal taxes will be due or recowerable, Where the final outcome of thess matters is different from the amounts that were initialy recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred incame tax assets and abilbes in the penod in which such determination is made.

A deferred tax assat of £108.0m (2020:£2.0m) is recognised in respeci of certain tax 10sses across the group, The key assumption used in recegnition of this assel is based upon a track record of generating taxable profits over the pas! five
years and managemenr's forecasts for taxable profits for the next five years, and the assumption that the losses wil be avaiable for utiisatian, If the tax losses were subsequently found nol to be avaiable for utifsation against taxable profits then
the deferred tax asset would no langer be recognised and there would be a charge of £108.0m (2020: £2.0m) in income taxes in the consofidated income statement.

(6) Funding, liquidity, going concern and covenant compliance
‘The Group actively maintains 8 mixture of long-term and shari-term faciities that are designed 1o ensure the Group has sufficien! avaiable funds for k and planned manitors roling forecasts of the Group's
Equidity reserve (bomowing faciities avatable and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flow. The Group maintains kiquidity through avaitable cash resenves and bomrowing faciites avaiable primariy through Sysco

Carporation group undertakings.

In assessing whether the financial statements for the Group are prepared on the going concem basis, the Directors have considered the future cutiock of the Group. Having consitered the future operating profits, cash flows and faciities
available to the Group, the Direclors are satisfied thal the Group will have sufficient funds to repay its iabikities as they fall due. Consequently, the financial stalements are prepared on the going concern basis.

() Exceptional cos! palicy
The Group's accounting policy for exceptionat items requires items of income and expense thal are considered to be material and outside the narmsl course of business (o be disclosed sep y in cial D ining which
itams meet this definition requires judgement, particularty in relation to employee and other costs which require classification between exceptional itams and those incumred in the normal course of business, Note 2 to the financial statements
dascribes the nature of the Group's exceptional items. Certain employee costs within ‘business change costs’ and transitional dual running casts incurred within the restructuring of the UK distribution network’ require the most degree of

judgement.

(9) Business combinations
Ihe recognition of busness combinabons requires the excess of the purchasa price of acquisifions over the nei book vakue of assets acquired to be allocated io the assets and fabilties of the acquired entity. The Group makes judgements and

estimates in relation to the fair value aocation of the purchasa price, If any unalocated portion is positive it is recognised as goodwill and if negative, it is recognised in the income statement.
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2. Rovenuo and operating profit

Restated
For the year For the yoar
ondod ¢ July ondod 28 June
2021 2020
£m £m
Revenue - producis 2,602.0 3,501.2
Direct purchage cost 1,937.1) (2,627.2)
Trading profit 664.9 8740
Distribution and seling costs (604.9) (742.8)
Gross profit 60.0 130.2
Administrative expenses (222.5) (167.8)
Exceplional items (se below) (28.6) (123.6)
jon of intangible nssats {18.9) (63.6)
Totol administrative expences (267.9) (355.0)
Group operating (loss) {207.8) (224.8)
The Group operating (loss) is fl derived from material continuing operations.
The Group's revenue pr of sales to within the United Kingdom (Inchxling the Repubiic of treland) amounting to £1,296.4m (2020: £1,991.2m), within France amounting to £827,2 m (2020: £998.4m)
and Sweden amourting 1o £478.4m (2020; £511.6m). The Revenue by procuct ne is as folows:
For the yoar For the year
endod 4 July ended 28 June
2021 2020
£m £m
Healthcare and Hospitality 79.9 101.3
Dairy Products 7.6 356.1
Meats 33 4482
Seafood 1011 156.9
Poutry 99.1 1103
Frozen 7208 902.1
Canned and Dry 438.9 §92.0
Paper and Dizposables 77 3.4
Chemical and Janitorial 28 05
Supply and Equipment 75.2 101.2
Produce 296 3388
Dispenser Beverage 1629 240.5
Conzumer sales @9 99.8
Alcohol 1.6 19.8
Intercompany sales to other Sysco Companies 125 154
Other income 153 18.9
Total 2,602.0 3.501.2
Restated
For the yoar For the year
ondod 4 July ended 28 June
2021 2020
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation ia arrived at after charging: £m £m
Employment costs (note 24) “3 503.7
Inventaries

- cast of inventories recognized a3 an expensa (inchuded in direct purchaza cost) 19324 28124

- write downs and losces incurred in the year / period 4 148
Amortization of intangible assets 18.9 6.6
Depreciation of property, plant end squipment

- awned assets 0.4 413

- Right-of-use nssots 514 86.2
Loss on sale of property, plant and oquipment 3.0 .7
Other operating lease rentals payable

- plant and machinery - .

- property - -
Repaira and maimenance expenditure on property. plart and equipment 36.0 30.4
Trade recei i (rote 11) (5.8) 51.4
ExcopUional itoms

- ing of the UK disri twork 48 nas
- Other UK (inctiding ROI) restructuring costs and ather costs 65 219
- Sysoo France restruchuring and ather costs 2.0 0.9
- Menigo Foodsenvice AB restructuring cosis and other costs 19 05
- Covid-19 (15.4) 425
Tota) exceptional items 26,6 1736
Restructuring of the UK distribution network

‘Ihe Group has mduqane cigrificant a clrategic rearganisation programme across the UK and European operations which targely condluded in 2020. The nvolves a the & twork

ms’ amongst other smafer projocts. The Group has incurred significant costs on dedicated teams recruited to manage the

of the Syate
Mlmm..&:meddumpﬂnmw.a of tansderring vomes from closing zitaa to new zites and ascociated provision for onerous contracts and other kobiities. m.aenmwileen:emnemnedmnmow:uum

of the programme.

Other UK (including ROI) rastructuring and other costs

In 2021 in response to chalienging trading conditions s @ result of Covid-19 the group anncunced a series of further restructuring plans to ciose various Sitas and streamiine bading operations. These costs relate primariy to

redundancy costs and costs associated with the closure of cites.
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2. Rovonue and oparating profit (continuod)

Sysco France restrucluring costs
Sysco France incurred restructuring costs in relation to the operational merger of various operations through France. In addition, costa were incurred in respect of site closures.

Menigo Foodservica AB rastructuring costs
Menigo Foadservice AB incurred restructuring costs in retation o rales permanently removed from the business dusing the year.

Covid-19
The credit relates to the release of bad debt provisions made in the previous year no longer required due to the recovery of the debt.

Auditors
During the year the inchuding its iaries) obtained the following services from the Group's auditers and its assodiates ai the fodowing costs:

Fees payabie to the Company's auddor for the 2udg of the parent company amounted ta £0.1m (2020: £0.1m). Fees payable to the Campany's auddor and s associates for other services are detated 28 follows:

For the yoar For the year
ondad 4 July ended 28 Juno
2021 2020
Othor sorvices: £m £m
The audit of the Company's parent and subsidiary undertakings. 15 1.2
Other non-audit services 0.2 0.5
17 17
3. Financo costs - nat
For tho yoor For the yeor
andod 4 July ended 28 Juno
2021 2020
£m £m
Financo costs:
Other foans and charges (7.6} (2.5)
Loans from parent undertakings 5.7 (8.5)
Leaze obligations (8.8) ®.7)
Net interest on net defined benefi liability {note 17) (1.4) (21)
Total fingnce costs {23.5) (22.8)
Financo incomo:
Interest income on chort term deposits. - 0.1
Other interest income 06 03
Loans to parent undertakings 129 126
Total finance income 13.5 130
Finance costs - not (10.0)

4. tncoma tax chargo

For tho yoar For the year
onded 4 July ended 28 June
Taxation is based on the profit for the year and comprises: 2021 2020
&m £m
Current tax
~ current year group relie! 28 70
- adjustments in respoct of previous years - .
- overceas toation 23) 4.0)
Deferred taxation - -
- origination and reversal of temparary differences (40.0) 23
- overseas deferred taxation (88.0) (5.8)
Incomo tax crodit {125.4) (0.5)
A reconciiation of the tax chargs for the year compared to the efective standard rate of corporation tax is summarised befow;
For tho yoar For the year
ondod 4 July ended 28 Juno
2021 2020
€m £m
{Lo33) on ordinary sctivities beforg tax (217.8)
At 19.00% (2020: 19.00%) (41.4) {44.6)
Effects of:
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of pravious years - -
Adjustments to deferred tax charge in respect of current year (85.8) -
Tax losse3 not giving rise to current year reiaf . 25
Re-measwement of deferred tax - change in the UK tax rate - 10
Expenses not deductible for tax pupeces and othet sdi 18 405
Taa crodit (125.4) {05)

“The main UK corporation tax rate has been 19% since 1 Apri 2017, During the year ended 4 July 2021 the Chancelor announced a change in the main rate of corporation tax to 25% from 1 April 2023,
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4. Income tax charge {continuoed)

In addition to the amount charged to the income stotement, the following amounts retating to tax have been recognised in other comprehensive income:

For tho yoar For the year
ended & July ended 26 June
2021 2020
£m £m
Curront tax
itoms that will not be reclassified to profi o loss:
Overseas taxation (credit) / charge on retirement benefil obligation N .
Doforrod tax
Items that wiil not b recassifiad to profit or loss:
Oefered tax charge on refiremeri benefit cbligation ctuarial gains and lozses 28 .
Htems that may not bo reclossified to profit o 105s:
Deferrad tax (credit) / charge on cash flow hedges (see note 19) 02 —{0:2)
30 102)

5. Profit/ (Less) of the Parant Company for the financial yoar

The Company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2008 and consequently has not presented an income statement, The Company's loss for the financia! year amounted to £87.5m (2020: £41.6m loss).

6. Goodwill
Growp Company
£m £m
Cost and not book vahso
At 29 June 2020 1912 8.2
Exchange adi {2.0) -
AL4 July 2021 189.2 28.2
Group Company
£m £m
Cast and nat book value
At 1 hdy 2019 1883 2.2
Exchange 29 -
At 28 June 2020 181.2 28.2
The goodwil has besn aflocatod to cash-genernting units ("CGUSs") and a summary of tha carrying amounts of goodwil by business sogments (representing groups of CGUs) is o3 follows:
Ata duy A128 June
2021 2020
£m £m
UK ond Iretand N 145 1145
France 42.4 449
Sweden 323 31.8
Cost and nat book vatue 189.2 191.2

In the UK and treland segment the core foodservico CGUs camprizes Broadiine, Country Choice, Ireland and Fresh Direct. In France it principally comprizes the tiading company Sysco France SAS and in Sweden i principally
comprises the trading company Menigo Foodzervice AB,

Within the UK and treland the significam batances of goodwill are £48.1m (2020: £69.8m) for Broadiine (including Courtry Choice), £52.7m (2020: £36,3m) for Fresh Direct and £13.7m (2020; £13.7m) for Kem Frozen Foods,

tmpairmont roviows
An overview of it i roviews perf is se1 out below. The recoverable amount of a CGU is. L Thoze ions use pro-tax cach flow projections based on

by
interral forecasts approved by management covering the next three financial years. Subsaquent cach flows beyond are exvapohusd wsing the estimated growth rate stated below.

The key in the vah

- Ravenue growth. This was based an expected lavela of activity under existing major controctual arrangements togather with growth based upon medium term historica) growth rates and having regord for expected economic
and market conditons for other customers.

- Operating cost grawth. This i based ) jon far each significant product kne, having regard for contractual amangements and expected changes in market conditions.

- Oiscount rates. The discount rates applied to the cash jections are bazed on an ighted of capital for the Group and reflect specific ricks relating to the relevant operating segments,

- Long term GDP growth rate. The long term growth rates appiied to the cash flow projections ara bated on econamic forecasts relating to the relavant operating segments.

The forecasts are bazsed on the approved management plan covering the next three financial years. Subssquent cash flows have boen forecast to increase by 3.0% (2020; 3.0%) for 2l CGUS in the UK and treland, 3.0%
(2020: 3.0%) in France and 3% (2020: 3.5%) in Sweden in line with the long term GOP growth rate and inchuding inflation, reflecting minimum management expectations based on historical growth. The cash flows in the
reportable tegments were diccounted primarfy using post-tax discount rates batween 9% and 10.5% (2020: 8.5% ) in the UK and Iretand. 9% (2020 8.3%) in France and 9% (2020: 8.5%) in Swoden. The directors have
concluded that there is no impairment becaute there i3 & headroom of recoverable amounts in excess of camying vakies.
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7. Intangibla Assots

Customer
‘contracts and Computer
Brands relationships. coftware Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Cost
A129 June 2020 285 526 202.7 283.8
Exchange adjustment ©8) - @ (43)
Additions. - {0.5) 2 208
Disposats of business . . 1.2) (1.2)
Dispocals - - (18.4) (18.4)
At 4 July 2021 278 52,1 2005 2805
Accumulated amortisation
At 29 June 2020 9.4 8.4 160.9 198.4
Exchange adjustment ©.2) - 3.4) 3.6)
Charge for the year 17 44 128 18.9
Dispozals of business - - 0.8) (0.8)
Disposals - - (18.8) (18.8)
At4 July 2021 10.9 325 150.7 3841
Not book vatuo at 4 July 2021 17.0 19.6 49.8 86.4
Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands relatonships software Total
Group Em £m £m £m
Cost
A1 Juy 2019 283 8.5 1780 2648
Exchange adjustment 0.2 0.1 1.4 W7
Additions - 0.5 2.2 27
Oisposaty - 65) 89) (15.4)
At 28 June 2020 285 528 202.7 283.8
Accumulnted amortisation
At 1 Juty 2019 78 299 105.2 1427
Exchango adjustment - . 08 08
Charge for the year 18 a7 574 6.6
Disposals = {8.5) {2.2) 8.7)
A128 June 2020 94 281 160.9 188.4
Net book value at 28 Juno 2020 19.1 24.5 418 85.4
Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands relationships software Tota!
Company £m £m £m £m
Coat
At 29 June 2020 22 - 0.5 81.7
Additions. - - 12.7 127
Dispoznts - - (15.8) {15.8)
At 4 July 2021 22 - 164 78.6
Accumutated amortisation
At 29 June 2020 1.0 - 611 62.1
Charga for the year [X] - 50 51
Disposals - - (15.8) {15.8)
At 4 July 2021 1.4 - $0.3 514
Not book vatuo at 4 Juty 2021 1.1 - 26.1 27.2
Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands relationships woftware Total
Company £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 July 2019 22 8.4 70 886
Additions - - 9.0 9.0
Disposats * - {6.4) (7.5} {13.9)
At 28 June 2020 22 - 70.5 81.7
Accumutated amortisation
At1 4y 2019 (X 64 586 658
Charge for the period [X) - 54 55
Disposals - (8.4) {29) 18.3)
A28 June 2020 1.0 - 81,1 62,1
Net bogk value a1 28 June 2020 1.2 - 184 19.6
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8 (a). Property, plant and equipment
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Information
Land and Motor Plam and technology
buidings vehicles equipment hardware Total
Group £m £m Em £m £m
Cost
Al 28 June 2020 5589 278 213 410 10286
Exchange adjustments (147 (4.5) (8.2) (X)) (268.9)
Reclassifications a8 won (11.3) a1 (3.1)
Additions 8o 135 25.4 a2 1320
IFRS 16 odjustment 1.8 - . . 1.8
Disposals of business (a.3) 20) (1.2) (0.4) (©9)
Disposaty (15.0) (19.8) (14.3) 3:3) {52.4)
" At4 July 2021 621.4 2041 203.5 %9 1,073.9
Accumulatod doprociation
AL 29 June 2020 1387 7.2 116.9 285 3813
Exchange adjustment {a.1) 1.1) (28) ©.5) (8.5}
Reclassifications {1.0) (0.4) 23) 29 0.8)
Charge for the year 388 334 185 a9 3.6
Disposals of business {0.8) 013) (0.8} (0.4) (3.9)
Disposals (10.3) 17.0) (120) (29) (42.2)
At4 July 2021 1812 90.8 115.5 325 400.0
Not book vatuo at 4 July 2021 460.2 $13.3 88.0 124 6739
. Information
Land and Motor Plant and technology
buidings. vehicles equipment hardware Tota)
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
A1 July 2038 2770 2158 186.7 428 7221
Exchange adjustments 29 1.2 15 02 58
On Adoption of IFRS 18 260.6 (8.0) a1 (5.5) 251.2
Additions 27.4 27 349 5.2 91.2
Dispesats (90) (15.1) (16.1) (1.5) {a1.7)
At 28 June 2020 558.9 2178 2111 41.0 1,028.6
Accumulated degpreciation
At 1 hdy 2019 843 85.0 1124 27.2 3288
Exchange odjustment 09 05 (%] 0.2 23
On Adoption of IFRS 16 21 (42.3) 0.1 (3.1 (43.2)
Charge for the year 46.0 w7 18.1 5.7 107.5
Disposals (4.6) (13.7) (14.4) (1.5) (34.2)
At 28 June 2020 138.7 77.2 1189 285 3813
Net book value at 28 June 2020 4202 140.4 942 12.5 657.3
Land and buiklings comprise:
Ata sy At 28 Juno
2021 2020
£m £m
Cost
Freehold 288.4 n2.7
Long leasehoid 26.0 59.7
Shor leacehcld 3080 2685
621.4 558.9
Accumulated dopreciation
Freehold 9.0 81.4
Long leasehold ©.1) 207
Short leazshold 62.3 368
161.2 138.7
The Group lestaa many ascets inchuding property, vehickes and equipment. inchuded within total tangible ascats are the folowing Right-of- to n with IFRS 16 "Leases”.
Plantand  Total Right of
Right-of-use assets Lend and bulldings  Motor Vehiclos oquipment  Use assots
&m £m £m £m
Balance at 28 June 2020 2209 758 7.7 32
(FRS16 adj 18 18
Exchange (.2) 3.9) 0.9) (8.9)
Redlassifications (1.4) ©.4) - (1.8)
Additions (o right-ot-use assets 771 70 .7 85.8
Depreciation (29.9) (20.7) @n (53.3)
Dispozals of business (1.0} ©3) - (13)
Disposals (.) (20} (0.6) @31
Balance at 4 hudy 2021 272.2 55.8 58 333.8
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9. Investments in subsidiaries

subsidiary (equity)
At cost Provision Write down  Net bock vatue
Company £m £m £m £m
A1 29 June 2020 4753 8.2) {54.3) 4148
Capital Contribution during the period 57.5 - - 57.5
Write down of investment in dormant company . - (20) (20)
Additional shares acquired during the petiod 368.5 - - 368.5
At 4 Suly 2021 8993 82) (56.3) 838.8
Alcost Pravision Write down  Net book vatue
Company £m £m £m £m
Al Juy 2019 4533 8.2) (54.3) 3928
Capital Contribution during the period 221 - - 21
Purchase j for prior period {0.1) = - {0.9)
Al 28 June 2020 475.3 (6.2) (54.3) 4148
The directors concider that the valuo of the investments ase supported by tha underlying 0ssets and the expacted future performance of the Group.
The subsidiary undestakings ot 4 July 2021 ore listed as folows:
Country of Parcentago
Namo of Company intorost hoid o] ting in:
Trading subsidiary undertakings:
Kent Frozen Foods Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Sysco Foods NI Limited Northem lreland 100.00% Urited Kingdom
Menigo Foodservce AB Sweden 100.00% Sweden
Amotts (Fruit) Limited Northern Iretand 100.00% United Kingdom
Other group undertaking:
Brake Brog Foodsenvics Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Syzoo France Hokiing SAS France 54.08% France
Victua SAS France 100,00% France
Dormant subsidiary undertakings:
Stockflag Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Freshfayre Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdam
Cucina French Holdings Limited England and Waies 100.00% Unitad Kingdom
Cucina Fresh investments Limited Enaland and Wales 42 00% tIntad Kingdam
Crossgar Pallas Limited Northem lreland 100.00% United Kingdom
The group undertakings ot 4 July 2021 are listed a3 folows:
Country of Porcontago
Namo of Company intorost hold Oporating In:
Trading group undertakings:
Fresh Direct (UK) Uimited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Servicestyckarna i Johanneshov AB Sweden 100.00% Sweden
Fruktserics i Heisingborg AB Sweden 100.00% Sweden
Ciofrn AB Sweden 100.00% Sweden
EKO Fagel fisk och mittemeitan AB Sweden 80,00% Sweden
Sysoo France SAS France 100.00% France
Les Ateliers du Gout. France 100.00% France
Daovige! Belghox SA Beigium 100.00% Beigium
Othor group undertakings:
Fresh Direct Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Brake France Développement France 100.00% Fronce
'SCI Bianchi Montegut France 100,00% France
SCI Lo Dauphin France 100.00% France
SCI De Boizeau France 100.00% Frence
SCI Oe Garceles. France 100.00% France
SCI 4D Lanjouan France 100.00% France
Othor group undertakings (dormant):
M3 Seafood Holdings Limited England and Wales 100,00% United Kingdom
Cucina Fresh Finance Limited England and Walas 100.00% United Kingdom
Fresh Direct Group Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Fresh Hokdings Limited England and Waoies 100.00% United Kingdom
M3.J Seafood Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
Pauleys Produce Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom
During the year the following group undertakings were either dissolved o ceased to exist:
isakssons Frukt & Grnt AB woden 100.00% Sweden
Wiid Hervest Limited England and Wales 100.00% United Kingdom  Dissolved 27 July 2021
During the year the following group undertaking was disposed of:
Davigel Espana S.A. Sgain 100.00% Spain
8(0). trvestmont in associato
. o tradit in Sweden, The held is 18% is in the ordinary share capital of the company and the directors consides that tho

. .
pany
value of the investment is cupparted by the undertying assts.
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10. tnventorioa

Growp Company
At 4 July 2021 A1 28 June 2020 At 4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020
€m £m £m £m

Raw materials and consumables 15.5 209 0.8 1.2
Finished goods and goods for resale 187.7 189.3 73.0 748
203.2 210.2 73.6 75.8

11. Trade and othar rocelvablos

Gro
At4 July 2021

up
A1 28 June 2020

Com,
At 4 Juty 2021

pany
At 28 June 2020

£m £m £m £m

Trade receivables 369.6 2334 180.0 1088
Less: provision for i of receivables {43.3) {56.8) (26.8) (34.0)
Trade receivables - net 2263 1768 153.2 728
Amounts awed by group undertakings 24 - 574 1019
Amounts owed by parent undertakings 1349 520.2 167 480.0
Amounts owed by related underinhings - 12 a2 0.4 1.3
Loans owed by parent undertokings 2247 206 - 2247 2208
Loans owed by group undertakings - . . 169.8
Other receivables 302 323 53 78
20.2 222 0.1 99

7499 9753 567.8 1084.1
Losy t postion - (3.4) - {104.8)
743.9 971.9 567.8 958.3

The loans owed by pareni underiakings comprise tv loans of £313.5m and £150,7m vhich accrue inferest al a rate of 6.0% and anather loan of £60.5m which accrues interest at 6,3%,

Concentrations of eredit tisk with respect to trede receivables ore imited due 10 the Group's customer bace being large and unrelated. Due to this, management believe there is o futher credi risk provision required in excess
of the normal provision for doubtful receivables. Therefore. the moximum exposure to credit rick at the reparting date is the fair vaiue of each dlass of receivable. The group and Campany do nat hold any colateral as sacuity.

The averege credil period taken on sales of goods is 36 days {2020: 24 doys). Interesl at various rates may be charged on overdue trode receivables.

As of 4 July 2021, Group trada receivables of £283.5m (2020: £128,3m) and Company trade receivables of £138.5m (2020: £54.5m) were hdly performing.

As of 4 Juty 2021, Group trade receivables of £42.8m (2020: £49,7m) and Company trade receivables of £14.7m (2020: £18.3m) were past due but nol impaied. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as folows:

Group Company
At4 July 2021 A128 Jure 2020 At4 July 2021 AL28 Juno 2020
£m £m £m £m
Up to 3 months 20.8 298 133 8.1
3to 6 months 130 19.9 14 22
428 48.7 147 18.3

As of 4 July 2021, uedolmuuudidah(zvzﬂ £57.3m) were impaired and provided for. The amourt of the provision was £43.3m a9 of 4 July 2021 (2020: £56.6m), Th impaired
‘economic situations. [t was assessed that o portion of the recsivables is expectsd to be recovered. mwwmwﬂmuvnﬂarwmbhsunum

which are in
Growp Company
At 4 July 202t At 28 June 2020 At 4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020
£m £m £m £m
Up to 3 months 53 320 25 27.4
3 to 6 months 34 78 04 25
Over 6 months 346 12.5 239 41
433 57.3 268 34.0
The book value of trade and other receivabies with a maturity of loss than one year are assumed approximate to fai vakue.
The carrying amounts of the trade and other i are in the following
Growp Company
At4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020 At 4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020
£m £m £m £m
Pounds. 603.1 8154 567.8 959.3
Ewos 96.6 70.8 - 1048
Swadish Krona 50.2 89.1 - -
7499 975.3 567.8 1.084.1
on the i impai of rade. i are as folows:
Group Company
For the yoar For the year For tho yoar For the year
ondod 4 July  ended 28 Juno onded 4 July  ended 28 June
2021 2020 2021 2020
£m £m £m £m
At 28 June 2020 / 1 July 2019 56.6 1.9 M0 36
Exchange adjustment (1.0) 03 . -
Disposal of business (1.1) - - -
Provision for receivables impairment (5.8) 51.4 (62) s
Receivables written off during the year a3 uncoliectible {5:4) {7.0) (08) (1.9
At4 July 20217 28 June 2020 4.3 56.8 27.0 4.0

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited dus to the Group's customer bage being large and unrelated. Due to this, management befieve there is no fuather credit risk provision required in excess
of a8 normal provision for impaired recsivables, Therefore, the moxmum exposure to credit risk al the reposting date is the fair vakue of each class of receivabie. The Group and Company does not hoid any cokaters! as

secuity.

The ather ciasses within tadoe and other receivables do not contain impaired assets
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12. Cash and cash equivalonts

Group Company
At4 July 2021 A28 June 2020 At July 2029 A28 June 2020
£m £m . £m

£&m

Cash at bank and in hand 6.3 620 a7 145
Shont term bark deposits - 2505 - 2500
8.3 3125 8.7 2845

The effective interect rate an chorl term deposits was 0%. The effective interest rate on company cash al bank and in hand is 0,0% (2020 0.0%).

13, Trado and othor payablos

Group Company
At4 July 2021 At28 June 2020 At4 duly 2021 At 28 June 2020
£m £m €m em
Trads payables 5492 3303 3206 180.7
Amounts owed to parent undertakings 1370 2549 1612 135
Amounts owed t group undertakinga - - 68.9 143.4
Amounts owed 1o related undertakings 58.6 420 121 a5
Other taxes and social security 28 4268 56 18.4
Other payables 458 48.2 19 1.2
Accruals 59.7 842 32.8 @3
8799 802.2 603.1 501.0

Amounts awed 10 group and parent undertakings are non-interest baaring, unsecured and are repayable on demand,

The average credit pariod taken for rade purchases is 53 doya (2020: 46 days). For most cuppliers no interest is charged on the trade payables for the first 60 days from the date of the invoice and thereafter interest may be

<charged on the outstanding balances al various intesest rates,

14, Curront incomo tax assots { (llabifltios)

Group
AL4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020

em £m
Corporation tax - UK - -
o Bion £ 45 19
45 1.9

At 4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020
£m £m

Corporation tax assets
Corporation tax kabilties

43 21
(0.4) 0.2)
45 18

15. Financis! liabilites - borrowings

Group Company
At4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020 At4 July 2021 At 28 Juno 2020
Curront £m £m £m £m
Loans owed to parent undertakings 119.8 126.0 1198 1260
Loans owed to group undertakings - - 1321 1321
Bank loans - 600.0 - 600.0
Leasa Liabities 459 53.2 14.5 15.8
165.7 778.2 266.4 873.9
Group Company
Al4 July 2021 A28 June 2020 At4July 2021  At28 June 2020
N £m £m €m £m
Loans owed to parent undertakings 198 1280 198 1280
Loans owed to group undestakings - - 1321 132
Bank loans . 600.0 - 600.0
Leaze Linbilties 355.7 3382 176.1 1768
4755 10622 4200 1.034.9
Lo3s amounts faling dus within one year {165.7) (779.2) {266.4) 873.9)
309.3 283.0 161.8 181.0
The carrying amounts of the Group end Company's borowings are denominated in the folowing currencias:
Group Company
At4 July 2021 Al 28 Juno 2020 At4 July 2021 At28 June 2020
£m £m £fm £m
Pounds Sterting 844 804.9 3185 917.2
Ewos 236.1 2212 M5 127
Swedish Krona 35.2 30.1 - -
4755 1.062.2 428.0 1.034.9
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1. Accounting policles
General information

These financial are the X financial of Brake Bros Limited ("the Group~) and the paren! company financial statements of Brake Bros Limited ("the Company’) for the year ended 4 July 2021, These financial
statements ware authorised far issue by the Board of Directors an 11 Apnl 2022. For practical reasons, the Graup and Company prepares its financial statements to the Sunday closes! to the Company reference dats of 30 Juna,

The financial statements have been presented in Sterfing (£) which is atso the functional currency of the Company.

Significant accounting policies
The Company's principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are sot oul below. These poicies i applied, unie: therwise stated.

Basls of preparation and going concern

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accardance with tnlemational Financial Reporting i of the C ies Act 2008 and intemational financia! reporting standards
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 160872002 as « apphes in the European Union. The consolidated fnancial sxatamems have been prepsved under the historical cosl convention and financial assats and financial kabilties (inctuding
derivative instruments) at far vatue through profil of toss,

The of fnancial in with IFRS requires the use of certein critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas inwohing a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estmates are significant to tha consolidated financial statements are disclosed below within critical accounting estimates and
agsumptions,

In assessing whether the financial statements for the Company and Group shouki be prepared on the going concem basis, the directors have considered the future cutiock of the Company and of the Group on a combined basis. The Directors.
have considered the future operating results. cash flows and faciites avaitable,

With the ifting of Comd 19 lockdown restrictions from the Spring in Europe, the Company and Group began to see an increass in operating volumes which is expected {0 continua.

The Company and group participates in a Evropean cash pooling armangement with other Sysco Group entities prowding additional sources of kcal Equidity as and when required. This cash pooi has dlrect access to an external Revohing
Credit Faciity of 8US2,000m. As of 3 April 2022 there are no drawings on this (aciity.

The Company's ultimate parant undentaking Sysco Corporation has confimed thal they will continue to suppert the Company in order to allow it to satisfy ds financial obligations in the normal course of business for a period of 12 months from
the date of approval of the balance sheel. The Directors are satisfied that the ultimate parent undertaking Sysco Corporation has the ability to provide this support, should it be required. The Directors of the parent forecast to have sufficient
fiquidity through the geing concern period even under its most downside lorecast scenario and befere any further mitigaling actions it may take.

Givan the expocted retum to profitabiity and the continued parental support, the Directors deem it ppropriate to prapara the financial statements on the going concem bass.

It was identified during the year that there was an amendment needed in the recorging of a recurring journal in the prior year accounts; the recording of amuunts 10 cther incame was posted aganﬂ direct purchase cost lnmad of distribution
tween

and sefing costs. The conrection amounted to £22.3m. Adddionally, & was dentified that a reclassification was needed in the prior year accounts be expenses and dtemsduetoa emor, The
carrection amourted to £36.9m .

Basls of consclidation

{0} Subsktiaries N

These i financial x the financial of the Company and all its subsidiary undertakings. Subsidiaries include structured entities where tho substance of the relationship between the Group and the

structured entity indicates thal it is controlled by the Group. Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entitios) over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group has power over the investee: is expesed, or has rights,
to variable retum fram its involvement with the investee; and has the abiity to use its power to affects its retums. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which contral is transferred to the Group. They are deconsoidated from the
date that control ceases.

Uniform accounting policies are adopted across the Group, pany L balances and ised gains on r between Group ies are efiminated. Unreatised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provdes evidence of an impairment of the asset transfarred.

(b} Accounting for businoss combinatians

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting 1o account for business inations. The consideratk for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair vakso of the assats trnsfered, the kabikties incurred and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any assets or labilty arisng from a X i velated costs ere axponsed as incurmed. Mdentfiable assets acquired and
fiabilities and contingent Eabilties assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their tair vatues at the isition dats, On an isiti ¥ isition basis, the Group any’ ling interest in the acquiree either

at foir vakue or al the non-controling interest's proportionate share of the acquires's net assets.

The axcess of th x the amount of any interest in the acquiree and the acquisilon-date fair valuo of any previous equity interest n the acquiree over the fair vatue of the Group's share of the identilable net
assels acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acguired in the casa of a bargain purchase, the difference it directyin the income.

For transactions with entities under common control the miahlo exemption fmm IFRS 3 ‘Busmess Cnmb’lnnmns is taken and the method of is used. The & assets and kabillies are measured at their pre-
combination cammying \akie including any previously goodwil, any on {i.e.. between the cost of investmenl and the carrying value of the net assets) are recognised in equdy in retamed eamings. The Group
recognises the rasults of the acquired entity from the date on which the business combination between entities under common contro! occurrad.

N ing interests in Xiaries are ientfled sep. y from the Group's equity therain. Thoss i that ars present ownership interests enliting their holders 1o a proportionate share of net
assets upon biquidation may initiaty be measured at fair valie or at the non-controling interests’ proportionate share of the fair vakie of the acquiree's idenitifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is made on an acquisiian-by-acquisition
basis, Other non-controling interests are initiaty measured at fair alus. Subsequent to acquisition, the carmying amount of non-controling intarests is the amount of thosa interests at initial recognition plus the non-controfing interests’ share of
subsequent changes in equity, Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controliing interests even if this resulis in the non-controlling intarests having a deficit balance.
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15. Financia liabilities - borrowkngs (contimsod)

Inchudod within total borrowings as loase obligations as follows: Growp Company
A4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020 At4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020
£m £m €&m £m
Current 459 532 145 158
Non Current 309.8 283.0 161.6 161.0
355.7 6.2 176.1 176.8
The maturity of botrawings is sel out in note 16 (a). Tha expasure of the Group and the Company to interes! rate changes is a3 folows:
Group Company
At4July 2021 Al 28 June 2020 AtaJuly 2021 At 26 June 2020
£m £m £m £m
Bortowings at floating interest rates 198 1260 2519 258.1
Fixed rate borawings maturing:
- within ane year 459 853.2 145 6158
- ons to five years 1383 1245 485 483
- over five years 1735 1585 1131 127
4755 1.062.2 4280 1.034.9
The effective interast rates a1 date of the statement of fnancial position were as follows:
Group Company
At 4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020 At 4 July 2029 At 28 June 2020
Loans owed to parent undertakings 8.5% 8.0% 8.5% 6.0%
Loans owed to group undertakings 0.0% 0.0% 6.0% 8.0%
Bank Loans 0.00 0.5% 000 0.00

16. Financlal instrumonts

16 (a) Financial instrumants - narrative disclosura
Disclasures in respect of the Group's financial risks are cat out below, Additional disdoswes are tot outin the Accounting Policies (on pages 16 to 21) and numerical disdlosues in respect of financial instruments are st culin

nate 16(b), 16{(c) and 16(d).
Financiat sk managomont

Financial risk factors .
The Group has operations in the UK, the Republic of Ireland and France inchuding Swoden and has debt financing which exposes it to a variety of financial rishs that include the effects of changes in debt market prices. foreign
currency exchange rates, credit rishs, commodity price risks, auidity and interest rates. The Group has in place a risk management programme that cecka to §mit the adverse effects on the fAinancial performance of the Group
by using foreign curency debt to hedge overseas investments in subsidiaries, using forward exchanga contracts for invertary purchases and fuel commodity waps 1o hedge against the risk of the change in the price of diese!.

The Board of Diroctors of Brake Bros Limited have the responsibiity for catting the risk policies, in jance with Sysco C risk policies, applied by the Brake Bros Limited group of
ies. The polcies are by the central group treasury deportment that receives fegular reports from the aperating companies to enablo prompt identification of financial fisks 20 that the appropriate actions

maybe taken,

() Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange riska primariy with respect to the Ewo and Swedish Krona although expozire to the Swedich Krana is nol considered material. The Group has cortain investments in foreign
operations, whose net as3ets are exposed 1o foreign currency transtation risk,

The Group's operations in the UK and Sweden have inventory purchases denominated in currencies other than thets functional currency, such as the Euro, Polish Zioty and Danizh Krane, These inventory purchates give rise to
foreign currency exposure between the functional currency of each entity and these currencies. The Group enters into foreign currency forward gwap contracts to el the appécable enifty's functional currency and buy currencies
matching the inventary purchase, which cperate as cash flow hedges of the Group's fareign curency-dencminated inventory purchases.

(i} Interost rata risk
The Group has bath interest bearing o3cots and interest bearing kabifties. Interest rate rick is not conaidered materia) for the Group.

(i) Crodit risk
The Group has o significant concantrations of credi risk. Credi risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, as we as credi exposures 1o inctuding ' vables and i jons. For banks,
independenty rated parties within the band ‘A’ rating are used for the main Group barking requirements, and wherever possible for subsidiary day to day Gperating requ For fisk control assesses the credd
quality of the customes, taking into account its financial positon, past experience and other factors, Individuatrisk mits are set based on intormal or 3. The Growp ha poicies that requre appropriate

redit checks on potential customers before tales commence.

The table bokow shows the credit rating and batance of the major bank counterparties al the date of the statement of financial posiion. A full anafysis of cash a1 bank and chort term deposits is included in note 16(d) to the
fingncial statements,

At 4 July 2021 A1 28 June 2020

Group Batancoe Batance
c Rating £m Rating £m
Bank A A - A 10
Bark B a 33 A 181
Bank C AA- - e .
Bank O A+ 128 A+ 88
Bank € A 38 A 39
Bank F A+ - Ar 1542
Bank G A+ 18.2 AA- RRE-)
Bank H 888- 27 888+ 30
Bank | BBB 08 ess 100
Berk K A 9.7 BEB. .
Bark N 888+ . BEB+ 0.4
Bank O BBB . Bee 21
Bank P AA- 0.1
Bark @ AA- 18
Bank R AA- 03

6.3 3125
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16. Financial instruments (continuod)

16 (a) Financlal - narvative
At 4 July 2021 A128 June 2020

Company Batanco Balance
C Rating £m Rating £m
Bank A A - A .
Bank B A 87 A 1144
Bank F A+ - A 150.0
Bonh K 8BBy - 888+ .

8.7 264.4

does not expect any losses from by these

(v} Liquidity risk

The Group's funding is derived from borrowings ind amounts funded from parent and Gloup undertakings that are designed to ensue the group has wuficient avaiable funds for cperations and planned expansions. The Group
&l30 has access to intercompany funding from parent entities, whom have access to an external Revoiving Crediit Facity of SUS2000m amongst other faciities. The Group also participates in a cach pooing arrangement with
other Sysco Group entilies providing additiona! sources of local Bauidity as and when required.

(v} Commuodity price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price tisk primarly with respect to diesel purchazes, The Group has in place a risk management programme thal seeks to imit the adverse effects on the firancial performance of the Group
by using diesel fuel commodity swaps 1o hedge against future prica changes. During the perid the Group entered into & number of fuel commodity swaps 10 hedge against the risk of the change in the price of diese! on
anticipated future pwchazes (see note 18(c) for frther details).

Maturity of financial tiabilities
The table betow analyes the Group and Company's financial kabililes into relovant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the date of the statement of financial position to the contract maturity date. The amounts
disciosed in the tabie are the controctus! undiscounted cash flaws.

Less than Botwoon ono Botwoon two Ower five
ono yoar end two yoars  and five yoars yoors
Group £m £ £m £m
Barowings - including interes! payments 119.8 . - .
Leaco Obligations. 55.0 47.8 100.0 227.4
Jrade and other bies o) ing ctatutory iabikties. 00 - - -
As ot 4 huly 2021 1748 47.8 100.9 227.4
Less than Between one Botween two. Over five
one year and two years and five years. years
Group £m £m £m £m
Borrowings - inchuding interest payments 7280 - . -
Lease Obiigations. 609 480 7.9 1860
Trade end other payables excuding statutory Rabiities - . . -
As ot 28 June 2020 786.9 48,0 97.9 1868.0
Losa than Botwoon ono Botweon two Ower fivo
onoyonr ondtwoyoors  and five years yoars
Company £€m £m £m £€m
Borowings - inchuding interest payments 2519 - - -
Lease Obligations 19.8 18.4 ©? 149.1
Trade ond other payables excluding statutory liabisties 00 = - =
As ot & ity 2021 2718 18.4 40.7 149.1
Less than Between ano Between two Over five
ne year &nd two years and five years. years
Company £m £m £m £m
Bomowings - incuding interes! payments asa.t - - -
Leaso Obligations 203 18,7 4.7 138.8
Trade and other payables exchuding statutory kbikties - - - -
As a1 28 June 2020 8784 18.7 .7 138.80

Capital risk managomont
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safoguard the Group's abilty b continus as o going cancem in order o provide returns for shoreholders and to maintnin an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital, These objectives are managed ot the uitimate UK Group level, Cucina Lux Inveatments Limited, rather than at a lower Group lave,

The overall debt and equity structure of the Company is under the control of the ulimate parent company, Sysco Corporation. There are no external capital requiements on the Company, Fusther detais of the share capital of
the Company can be found in note 20 of the financial statements.

16 (b} Financial instrumonts - by catogory

The accounting policies for financial instruments have beon applied to the ne items below:

At4 July 2029 At 28 June 2020
Loans and Loans and
receivablos receivables
Group £m £m
Assots as par statoment of financlal position .
Trade and other receivables 207 953.1
Derivative financial instuments - 03
Cash and cash equi 633 3125
793.0 1.265.9
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16. Financiat Instruments (continued)

18 (b) Financial instruments - by catogory (continued)

At 4 Juty 2021 A128 Jure 2020
Liabilities
ot falr vatuo
through the  Other financial thwoughthe  Qther financial
profit and toss. finbifities Total profil ond loss Eabiities. Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Linbilitios as par statomont of financial position
Financial iabikties - borrowings - 4755 475.5 - 1.062.2 10622
Derivative financial instruments - L8} 0.1 - 24 24
Jrade and other payables excluding statutory liabilties - 850.1 850.1 - 7596 759.6
. 1.325.7 1,325.7 - 1.824.2 1.824.2
A4 Dty 2021 At 28 June 2020
Loans and Loans and
rocaivablos receivables
Comparny £m £m
Assots as per statomaent of financial position
Trede and other receivables 557.7 1,0542
Cash and cagh iy 8.7 264.5
5668.4 1.318.7
AL 4 Juty 2021 AL 28 June 2020
Linbilities Liabiities
at far vatue o1 far vako
through the  Othor financial tvoughthe  Other financial
profit and loss Gabiiities Total profit and loss Eabities Total
Company_ £m £m £m £m £m £m
Linbilitios 23 por statsment of financial position
Financial Eabikties - borrowings. . 428.0 428.0 . 10348 10349
Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1.3 1.3
Tinde and other payables exchuding stotutory Babililies - 5875 597.5 - 4846 4846
- 1,0255 1,025.5 - 15208 15208
16 (c). Financial Instruments - numerical disclosures
Falr vatuo estimation
The table below analyses financial instruments carried ot fair value, by valuation method. The different lavels have been defined as fotlows:
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets of fabiites (leve! 1),
« Inputs other than quoted prices inchuded within level 1 that are observable for the asset or kabiity, either divectly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (leved 2).
« Inputs for the asset or liakility that are not based on observable market data (that ia, uncbservable inputs) (level 3).
The following tabie presents the Group and Company s assets end liabkbies thal are measwed at fair value a1 4 July 2021;
Lovel 1 Lovol 2 Lovol 3 Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Asset
Forward foreign currency contracts - - - -
Cash flow hedges 01 - 0.1
Liability
Forward foreign cuency contracts - (©.3) . 0.1)
Cash flow hedges - - L3 = -
Company
Liability
LCazh flow hedges . - - .
The following table prezents the Group and Company's assets and liabiites that are mensured ot fair vakue at 28 June 2020;
Lovel 4 Lovol 2 Lovel 3 Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Assots
Forward foreign currency contracts 09 09
Cash flow hedges
Liability
Forward foreign curency contracts . ©.2) . ©.2)
Cash flow hedges - (2.2) - {2.2)
. (1.5) - {1.5)
Company
Liabilitlos
LCash flow hedges - (3.3) = 1.3)
- (1.3) - {1.3)
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6. Financial instrumonts {continuod)

18 (c). Financlal -

The Group and Company does not have any financial instruments that are traded in active markets,

For all other financial i fair value is i by using vatuation ' Valuation > include net present value techniques, the dizcounted cash flow mathod, comparisan to simiar instruments for which
markel obzervable prices exst, and valation models. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument ase observable, the instrument is included in lave! 2. If ane or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable markel dala, the instrument is included in level 3. \

Carrying vahues of dorhvative financial Instrumonts

Assots Liabilios Assets Uabiities
At4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020
Group £m £m, £m £m
-
Forward foteign currency contiacts - (0.1) 08 (0.2)
Cash flow hedges 0.1 - - (2.2)
Total current portion 0.1 (0.1} 08 2.4)
. Assots Liobilitios Assets Lisbikties
AL4 Juty 2021 AL28 June 2020
Company £m £m £m
Cash flow hedges . - . 0.3)
Total curront portion . - - (13)
Cash flow hedges

Fair values of non-derivative financial assats and liabilities
Where market values are not avadlable, fair vakes of financiol assets and financiat labikties have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevaiing interest ratos and by applying year end exchange rates,

The book value of short term botrawings i approximats to fai value.

Set out below are numerical disclosures in respect of the Group's financial instruments.

At 4 July 2021 2128 June 2020

Book vahwo Fair valuo Book value Fait vatue
Group £m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments held ar iscued to finance the Group's operations:
Short term financial liabiities end curent portion of kong term borrowinga R (165.7) (165.7) 7719.2) (779.2)
Other fang term borrowinga (309.8) (309.8) (283.0) (283.0)
Trade and other payables (879.9) (879.9) (802.2) (802.2)
Trade and other receivables 720.7 7297 853.1 953.1
Cash and cogh equivalents 3.3 83.3 325 3128
Retirement benefit i (84.2) (84.2) {103.2) {103.2)

The book vakues of short-term bank depoits, lana and ather borrowinga with 8 maturity of less than one year are aszumed to approximate to their fair vakes, In the case of bank loans and other borrowings due in more than
one year the (air value of financial liabikities for disclosure purposes is estmated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current estimatad markel interest rate avaiable to the Group for simiar fimancial
insruments.

The book values of rade and other receivables, tade and other payables. cosh and cash equivalents and retiremeani benefit obligations are assumed to approximats to thei fair values.

. Other fair values chown above have been estimated using vakiation method leve! 3 by discounting cash flows at prevaling interest rates,

Al 4 July 2021 . At 28 June 2020

Book vatue Falr vatuo Book vatue Fair vake
Company £m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments heid o7 iscued to finance the Group's operations:
Short term financial liabiites and current portion of long term borrowings. (266.4) (266.4) (873.9) (872.8)
Other long term borrowings. (181.6) (161.6) (191.0} {161.0)
Trade and other payobles (603.1) (603.1) (501.0) (501.0)
Trade and other receivables 552.7 5577 10542 1.054.2
Cach and cash equivatents 87 87 2845 2845
Retrement benefit {30.3) (30.3) {48.9) {48.9)

Borrowing facilitios
The Group headed by Brake Bros Limited has no undrawn commited borrowing facikties avaiable at 4 July 2021 (2020; £nd )
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16. Financial instrumonts (continuod)

16 (d). Crodlt quatity of financial assots

The credit quality of financial assets thai are neithes past due nor impaired can be asceszed by reference to our Group rick prafie indication based upon information provided by our external credit agencies:

Group Company
At4 July 2021 Al 28 June 2020 AL4 July 2021 AI28 June 2020
£m £m £m £m
Trado reccivables
Low ik 236.8 110.8 1385 53.4
Maodium fisk 334 8.1 - .
High fi 133 7.4 - 1.1
Total tade receivables 2835 126.3 138.5 545
‘These categories of risk reflect the relativo credit risk attibutable to cur trade receivables.
Group Company
Atd Juty 2021 Al 28 June 2020 Al4 July 2021 AL28 Juno 2020
£m £m £m £m
Cash st bank and short term doposits
AA- 22 19 . .
I 310 1811 - 1500
A 2.8 1240 8.7 1144
A . . ’ . .
BB8+ - 3.4 . -
BBs- 27 - - .
888 08 321 - -
63.3 325 8.7 284.4

12, Rottremant bonofit obligations

The Group operates a number of pension schemes for its UK employees; the ascets of all schemes being hekd in sepasate trustee administered funds. The pension cchemes are cperated by the Company. In additon, in

France and Sweden the Group is kable for certain post employment benefits which moet the criteria of a defined benefit plan and thece obligations are of an unfunded notwre. The UK pension cchemes are operated by the

subzidiary company Brake Bros Limited and are 03 follows:

(i) Tho Brakes Finol Setary Pension Scheme was closed to existing employees al 31 December 2003, No further benefits are occruing 1o members subsoquent 1o this date. The scheme ia & funded defined benefit pension
n,

The schems s administered by a separate board of trustees which is legaly teparate from Brake Broa Limited. The bustoss ate composed of representatives of bath the employer 6nd the members and an indepandont
trusteo, The trustoes are requiod by taw to act in the interest of all relevant and are for the i policy with regard o the assets plus the day to day administration of the benefits.

Under the scheme, members are entitied to defined ennual penions on retirement ot normal retirement age (typicaly age 83 or oge 65). Benefits are alzo payable on death and following other ovents such as cerly retirement.

Brakes Fina! Satary Pension Scheme retvement benefit obigations up to a maximum amourd of £20.0m (2020; £20.0m) are secured by way of a charge over certain property, plant and equipment of the Group,

Further detats on the profile of the schem, its fundi i and risks associnted with the sch explained tater in this nota.

(7) Tho Brakes Group Personal Penzion Plan was opened on 1 April 2013 and ia a quatying workplace penzion scheme thal the Group is zing (o most the sutomatic enroimant legisiative fequizement. It is contracted into tho
stats pension scheme and for lment members the o cates aro 5% of pensk satary for members and 3% for employers and for elected members h on rates of 5% of salary for
membera and from 4% for empl with higher emplo ibutions for managers. Funds are invested with Legal & General Investment Management,

(&) The Biakes Money Puchase Pension Plan closed an 31 March 2015 wi all exating membero auto-emolied into the Biskes Group Porsonal Pension Plan. Minimum contribution rates for ex-members of he Brakes Maney
Purchase Pension Plan are 3% of pensionable calary for members and 4% for employers, with higher for managers.

() The Fresh Dizect Group Personal Pension Plans were opened on 1 January 2014 are qualifying workplace pension schemaes that the Group is using to meet the automatic enrolmen logistative requirements. Members of
the ccheme were biansferred to The Brakes Group Persanal Pension Plan.

In Sweden, the cubsidiary company Menigo ice AB, provid with definad benefil and defined contribition pengion schemes, The majority of the are provided in with the (TP pian
(supplementary pension for industrial cataried employees). The Growp's employses in Sweden are provided with TP retirement benefits vio an unfunded defined benefit plan. For certain tataried employees, the TP pensions
are tecured thiough the insurance company Alects. The plan is reported a5 @ defined contribution plan with the premiums paid reflocting the penzion cost.

In France, for the subsidiary companios Sysco France SAS, all employees are provided rotirement indemnity benefits (tndemntéde Départ en Retraite "IDR"). Theze are unfunded orrangements that provides retirement
beneflts based on service and salary, wih differers level of benefits depending on employees’ postion and grade.

Tho amounts recognised in tho statomont of financial position for defined boneflt plans aro sot out bolow:

Growp Company

AL4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020 At4 July 2021 At 26 June 2020

£m £m £m £m

Present vaks of funded oblgations 612 222 2612 2822
Present valuo of unfunded obigations 539 543 - -

Fair valuo of plan assets (2308) (233.3) (2309) (233.3)
Not Enaon hﬂlz mﬂs&d in the statement of financial position 84.2 103.2 30.3 48.9
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7. bornefit
The intho banafit during the ysar is as followa:

Group Total Group Company

For the year For the yoar

endod 4 July ondod 4 July

UK France Swoden 2021 2021

Rotiroment banofit obligations £m £m £m £m £m
A129 June 2020 @9 23 220 1032 49

Exchange adjustment - (1.2) (0.9} 2.1) -

Inteses! expense 07 0.2 05 1.4 07

Administrative expenses 02 - - 0.2 02
Current service cost - 14 1.0 24 -
Prior service cost . . . - .
Contributions paid in the year (4.5) (.7 ©.7) (6.9) 4.5)
Remeasuwements iced in other income {15.1) (2] [:K] {18.9) {15.1)
A4 July 2021 30.3 219 320 84.2 30.3
The tn the benefit in the prior period was as follows:

Group Total Group Company
For the year For th year
ended 28 June ended 28 June
UK France Sweden 2020 2020
bonofit £m £m £m £€m £m
At July 2018 59.4 29 206 118 59.4

Exchange adjustment . 03 0.2 0.5 -
Interest expense 1.3 0.2 06 2.1 13
Administrative expenses 08 - - 0.8 08
Current service (income) cost . (2.8) 08 (.7 -
Prior service cost - B - . -
Centributions paid in the year (4.5) ©.5) 0.6) (58) (4.5)

ised in othes income (8.1) 10 23 (4.8) (8.1)

A1 28 June 2020 289 23 320 103.2 489

The amounts In the Income and other Income for dofinod banofit plans are sot out below:
Group Total Group Company
For the yoar For tho yoar
ondod 4 Jidy endod 4 July
uK Franco Swedon 2021 2021
Ratiromont benafit obligations £m £m £m £m

Oporating cost
Service costs:

- Curren zarvico cost - 14 10 24 -

- Admin oxpenses 02 - - 0.2 02
Total operating costs 02 14 1.0 26 02
Financing cost
Interest expense a7 8.2 0.5 14 07
Total incomo statement chargo 1.0 16 1.5 41 1.0

in other income

-(gain3) / kosses from changes in demographic ascumptions ©.1) [X] 0.4 09 (0.9)

- gains from changes in financial assumptions (12.0) - - {1209 (12.0)

- experience gains. 32 . : 32) (32)

- teturn on ccheme agsots 03 - - 03 03
Total amount rocogninod in other comprahensiv incomo (15.0) [X] 0.1 (14.0) {15.0)

Group Group Company

For the year For the year

ended 28 June endod 28 June

UK France Sweden 2020 2020

Rotiramont bonofit obligations £m £m £m £m £m
Opoerating cost
Servico costa:

- Current service (income) / cost - (2.8} 08 {1.7) -

- Administrative expenses 08 - - 08 08
Total operating costs / (incame) 08 (28) 0g (0.9} 08
Financing cost
Interast expense 13 02 08 21 1.3
Total incoma statomant chargo ! (crodit) 2.1 (2.4) 1.5 1.2 2.1

In other Income

-{gain3) / losses from changes in demographic astumptions (1.3) 10 23 20 (1.3)

- (gains) fram changes in fnancial assumptions 24.4 N N 244 244

- experience (gains) (7.5) - - (7.5) {7.5)

- retum -heme oscets (2.7) - - {23.7) (.7
Tota amount recognisod in other comprehanahve Incoma (8.1) 10 23 (4.8) [CR))
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7. bonofit
The amounts in the Income for defined plans are sot out bolow:
Growp Company
For the yoar For the year For the yoor For the year
anded 4 July  ended 28 June ondod 4 July  ended 28 June
2021 2020 2021 2020
&m £m £m £m
Defined contribution schemeas 13.4 17.0 14.0 132
Roporting at 28 Juno 2020

The independent actuary cokutates the defined benefit cbligation anmually by adjusting the results of the lates! tiennial funding vahuation ot § April 2019 to the statement of financial position date, aking eccount of experience
aver the period since 5 April 2019, changes in market conditions, and differences in the financia! and demographic assumptians. The present value of the defined benefil obligation is meacured using the projected unit credit
method. The principel financial and demographic assumptions used to calculste abiities for the year ended 4 July 2021 are set out below.

A4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020
Financial assumptions % %
UK ossumplions:
Rats of increase in pensions in payment and deferred pensions 280 275
Discount rate 190 1.60
inflation assumption RP) 285 280
Inflation assumption CPY 2.5 210
France assumptions:
Discount rate 075 075
Solary increase 235 235
inflaton 170 1.70
Swedon assumplions:
Discount rate 2.00 1.50
Salary increase 250 225
Inflation 180 120
Demographic assumptions
Mortality rata UK assumptions:

The mortaiity assumptions are based on the recent actual mortasty

of Schem
The averags s expectancy in years of a pemsanes reling ot ago 63 on the date of the satement o”mnual position is a3 fobows:

ic anatysis of the Scheme membership, and aliow for expocted futue improvements in montaity rates.

At4 Juty 2029 AL28 June 2020
Male 215 218
Female n7 27
The average ko expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65, 20 years after the date of the statement of financial potition is a3 follows:

A4 Judy 2021 At 28 June 2020
Malo 218 219
Femalo 248 245
Sensitivity to kay assumptions

Tho koy assumptions used for IAS 189 are: discount rete, inflation and mortality, If different assumptions were used in the UK, this could have a matariai effect on the results disciosed. The tensitivity of the retirement benefit

obbgation to these assumptions is as foows,

- FoBowing 2 0.2% pa decreasa in the discount rate the defict would increase by £9,.0m from £31.0m to £40.0m.

- Following a 1 year increase in life expectancy the defici! vould increase by £9.7m from £31.0m to £40.7m,

The ansitivity information shown above has been prepared using the tame method 85 ndopted when adjusting the results of the latest funding valation to the date of statement of financial posiion . Thia is the same approach

as has been adopted in provious periods,

Anatysis of movement In presant vatue of retirament benafit abligations during the year Is as follows:

Group Total Group Company

Franco Swoden  For the yoar For tha year

UK (funded (unfundod (unfundod  ondod 4 July anded 4 July

2021 2021

€m £m £m £m £m

Total 2022 223 320 2365 2822
Exchonge adjustment - 12 (7 @9 -

Interest expense 44 02 05 5.4 44

Remeasurements:

- (gains) / loss0s from (0.1) 09 0.4 08 (0.9)

-(gains) from changes in financial azsumptions (12.0) . - (12.0) (12.0)

- exparience (gain3) (2) . 32) (32)
Contritassons paid by employer a7 ©.7) (24) -
Current tervice cost - .4 24 -

Benefits paid {10.1) . - (10.1} {10.1)

At4 July 2021 261.2 219 3.2 31e3 2612
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Analysis of movemont in prosent valuo of retirement benofit obligations durlng the prier period fs as follows:

Group Total Group Company
Sweden For the year Far the year
UK (funded France (urfunded (urfunded  ended 28 June ended 28 June
X : 2020 2020
£m £m £m £m £m
A1 Sy 2019 268.2 28 286 320.7 288.2
Exchange adjustment - 0.3 0.2 0.5 -
Interest expenze 6.1 0.2 06 69 81
Remeasurements:

- (g#ins) / losses from changes in demographic assumptions (1.9) 1.0 23 20 (1.3)
- goins from changes in financial assumptions 24.4 - - 24.4 244

- experience (gains} {1.9) - - (7.8) {7.5)
Contributions paid by employer ©.5) (©.6) (K} -
Current servico (income) / cost - (28) 08 .7 -
Benefits paid {2.7) - - (2.7} (2.7)
At 28 June 2020 282.2 223 320 338.5 2822
Analysis of movemont in fair vatue of schomo assots during the yoar is as follows:

Group Company
For tha year For the year For tho yoar For the year
ondod 4 July  ended 28 Juno ondod 4 July  ended 28 June
2021 2020 2021 2020
£m £m Em £m

AL 28 June 2020/ 1 July 2019 2333 203.8 3 2088
Interest incomo on tcheme assets 7 a8 a7 48
Remoasurements: - .

- gaina  (losses) on return an teheme ascets (03) 07 ©3) 7n7
Admiristrative expenses. (02) (0.8) 0.2) {0.8)
Contributiona paid by employer 45 4.5 45 45
Benefits paid (10.4} {7.7) {10.1) .
At 4 July 2021/ 28 June 2020 2309 232.3 2308 233.3
The Plan assots are invested in the following asset closses:

Group and compary Group and company
For tha yoar Of which not For the year Of which nat
ondod 4 July quoted in an ended 28 June quoted in an
2021 ectivo market 2020 octive market
&m £m £m £m

Equities. 209 176 n2 153
Property 10.0 10.0 1ne 16
Macro orientated 23 - 138 -
Mult srategy . . 55 .
Credit/ Corporate bordis 139 . 1368 -
Government bonds 3.7 - 109.9 -
Derivatives 19 25 8.7 26
Cash and cash equi 83.2 3 37.2 Ll
ALa hdy 2021 / 28 June 2020 2309 301 2333 20.5
Furthor dotalls on tho Brakes Finat Satary Pension Schomo
Profilo of the scheme

The defined benefi abligation inchudes benefita for deferred and current pensicners, Broadly, about 84% of the liabiibos are attributable to deferred penzioners and 368% to current pengioners,

The cchema curaton is an indicator of the weighted-average tme untl bencfit payments are made, For the ccheme as 0 whole, the duration is asound 17 years reflecting the appraximate spit of the defined benefit obligaton
- between deferred pentioners (duration of 20 years) and current pensionera (duration of 12 years),

The table below ibusirates the profie of projected future benefit payments fram the schems.

Expectod maturity anlysis of undiscounted pension benefits

Lessthan  Betweenone  Betweon two Over
At 4 July 2021 one year and two years and five years five years
Pengion bensfita B Py 2% 8% 20%
At 28 June 2020
Pension benefits 2% ) % 0%

Funding requirements

UK legisiation requires that pension tchemes are funded prudently, The iast funding valuation of the Scheme was carried out by a quaified actuary 03 at 5 April 2019 and thowed a deficit of £95.8 milion. The Company is
currently paying deficit contributions of £4.2 milion p.0.. which increases to £15.3 milion p.a. payable monthly with effect from July 2021 (due to paid in August 2021) untl September 2027, which were expected to make good
thia chortfall by September 2027. The next funding vakuation will be carriod out with an effective date of § April 2022 when progress towards full funding wil be roviewed. The Company pays contributions of £0.3 mifion p.a. in

respect of the expenses of Estering the Scheme, A tota! ion of £14.675 milion is expected to be paid by the Company during the year ending on 30 June 2022,
Risks associatod with the schemo
Asset volatiity The Giehiities are calcutated using a discount rate ce1 with reference to corporate bond yiekds; if ascets underperform this yield, this will create & deficil.

Changes in bond yields
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the vatue placed on the scheme's kabilities for accounting purposes, although this will be partially offcet
by an increase in the value of the scheme's interest rate matching aszets, The ccheme’s investment stratagy is to hedge interest rate risk although it i
currently only partially hedged, meaning that 8 decrease in interest ratss wil increass the deficil.

Infiation fisk A tigrificant proportion of the scheme’s benefit abligations are inked to inflation and higher infiation will lead to higher Gabikties (although, in most cases,
caps on the lovel of inflationary increases are in piace to protec egainst extreme nflation), although this will be partially offset by an increass in the vatue
of the scheme's inflation matching assats. The scheme’s invesiment strategy is to hedge inflation risk akhough  is curently only partially hedged.

Life expectancy

The majority of the scheme’s obligations are t provida banefits for the Ko of the member, 2o increates i ife expectancy wil resut in an increase n the
Eatuities,

The Group and Trustees have agresd a long-term strateqy for reducing investment risk a3 and when appropriate. This includes diversification of growth assets to feduoe volatiity and an assetliabiily matching polcy which
aims to reduce the volatity of the funding leve! of the pension plan by investing in assots such 63 Swaps which perform in ine with tho abikties of the plan co 83 to protect oginst inflation being higher than expected or market
yieldn being lawer than expected.

On 26 October 2018 the High Coust of Justice in the Urited Kingdom issusd a niing requiring the quatization of banefits payable in respect of Guaranteed Minimum Pension benefits for malea. For both the Group and the
Company the impact of this nuling will be to increase the defined benefit abligation of the Brakes Final Salary Pension Scheme. Curren| estimates by the independant actuary estimate the impact of the Guaranteed Minimum
Pension upift to be immaterisl for Brake Bros Limited.
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Group sctuarial gaing. Bﬂ:lﬂ \m(yem u\deﬂ 28.!0(\92020 4,8m loscas) were recognised in the period and included in the statement of expenze / income. The cumulative amount of actuarial
losses included in the lemel ncome ts £65.5m (28 June 2020 £79.6m).
The actual gain on ptan assels was £2.6m (2020: £28.5m gain).
18. Provisions
Group Company
For the yoar For the year For the yoar For the year
ondod 4 July  ended 28 June onded 4 July  ended 28 June
2021 2020 2021 2020
Proporty and othor £m £m £€m £m
A1 28 June 2020 /01 July 2019 374 327 263 234
Dizposal of subsidiary - . -
Earn-out on sisition of {ncte 23) - - .
Charged / {¢rodited) to the income statement during the yea: 2.1 729 . 33
Provisions for property, plant and equipment additions amm the year 18 . 1.4 R
Ui ing the year (35) (3.2} {0.8) {0.4)
At 4 July 20211 28 Juno 2020 378 37.4 26.8 26.3
Non-curren 3.2 a7 2.6 X
Current, 34 57 22 28
7.6 37.4 26.8 26.3

Property provigions at 28 June 2020 are for dilapidation cbligations relating to leasehokd property held by the Group, Provisions for dilapidations primarily represent obligations o reinstate property to its original condition at the

end of the leage term.

At4 July 2021 thore were provisions relating to anerous contracts amounting to £4.4m (2020; £3.8m) and atso provisions for ear eam-out consideration amounting to £0.2m (2020: £2m) in reapect of the acquisitions of Eko
Fich, Paymont of thia consiteration is dependent upon certain trading performance targofs being met.

19. Doforrod tax

The following are the major deferred tax assets and Eabilities recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current end prior year:

Property, ptant
Retrement Capital equipment
benefit eflowances timing Customer lista fair vake  Other temporary
cbigations  Cash flow hedge differences Tax losses endbrends  adjustments differences Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At Jdy 2019 20.2 (©.1) 14.4 82 8.5) 1) 85 a7.8
Exchange adjustmont 0 - ©.1) (0.1) . . ©.1) (0.2)
Credited / (charged) to other comprehensiva income in the year 02 0.2
Credited / (charged) to the incoms statement in the yaar (1.8) 0.2) 1.7 (38) 1.4 - (40) 35
At 29 June 2020 18.5 (0.1} 28,0 25 (7.1) (1) 24 411
Exchango adjustment (0.6) (2] 06 0.4) ©.3)
Credited / (charged) to ather comprehensive incoma in the year (28) (2.8)
Credited / {charged) to the income statement in the year 0.3) {0.2) 7.8 107.4 14 0.3 1284
AL4 Juty 2021 14.8 (0.2) 4. 109.9 (5.7) [(8)] 23 184.1

Deferred tax assets and Gabikties are only offset where there i o fegally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention o cette the batances nel. The following is the analyzis of the deferred tax batances for the Group

(after offzet) for Gnancial reporting purposes.

AL 4 July 2021 Al 28 June 2020
£m £m

Deferred tax ascets 171.0 494
Doferred tax kabiibes (89) 83)
164.1 41.1
The following aro the major deferred tax assets and abilitiea recognizad by the Company and movements thereon during the current and prior year.
Propenty, piant
Retirement Capital nd squipment
benefit aflowances timing Customer ists fair valuo  Other tomporary

aobligations  Cash flow hedge differences Tax losses and brands sdjusiments differencas Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Al 1 Judy 2019 10.3 - 28 1.9 {0.2) ©.7) (2] 350
Tax charge on retrement ken directly to other
comprehensive income 0.5) - - - - - . (0.5)
‘I’nx aadn on cazh flow hadges taken dectly to other comprehensive

- 02 - - - - - 0.2

&ednmlg rged) to the income statement in the year 0.5) . 25 0.1 - 0.5 76
Al 20 Juno 2020 9.3 02 30.3 20 0.2) ©n 1.4 42.3
Tox charge on retrement benefit cbligations taken directly to other
comprehensive ncome (2.8) - - - - - - (28)
Tax charge on cash flow hodges taken directly to other comprehensive
income . (0.2) . . - - - (©.2)
Credited / {charged) to the income statement in the year ©.8) - 14.5 1.2 - - - 249
At4 July 2021 5.7 - M8 3.2 ©2) ©.7) 14 64.2
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19. Dofarrad tax assets and flabillties (continuod)

Deferred tax assets have been recognized in respect of tax losses and on temporary differences giving fise to deferred tax astats, to the extent that it is considered probable, based on internal forecasts, that these assets will
be recovered. There are unrecognised deferred tax assets in respect of unutiised tox kisces in the UK amounting to ENi (2020; £6,1m). Thero is no expiry date for these losses. The deferred tax charged to othet

comprehensive income during the period amourted to £0.0m (2020; 0.0m).

20. Share capital

At4 July 2021 A128 June 2020
Group and Company £m £m
Authorised
$6.000.000 (2019: 58.000.000) ordinary shares of 10p 5.4 5.4
Ordinary shares
Issued and fully paid paid of 10p each £m £m
At 4 July 2021728 Juno 2020 53.776.541 5.4 5.4
21. Sharo promium
At 4 July 2021 A128 Juno 2020
Group and Company Em £m
Al 29 June 2020 / 1 July 2018 308 30.8
Issued during the period 2578
At 4 Juty 2021/ 28 June 2020 288.6 308
22. Reservos
Other reserves:
Business
comb, under Other Capital Total other Relained
Hedging  common control reserves contribution te3erves ecamings Total
Group - 10 owneors of the paront Company £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 29 June 2020 1.2) (78.5) 243 417.3 3e3e 783 4422
Impaoct of adoption of IFRS 16 - - - - - ©0.2) 0.2)
Retirement benefit obbgation actuarial gain - - - - . 141 14,1
Taxation on retirement benefit abligation actuarial gain - . . - - (2.8) (28)
Cash flow hedges - losses arising in the year 16 - - . 1.8 . 16
Taxation on cash flow hedges (0.3) - - - (0.1) - {0.1)
Long term incentive plan charge - - - - - (1.2) (1.2)
Currency transiation differences - - 24 - 24 - 24
Logs for the year - - - = - (92.4) 92.4)
At4 July 2021 03 {718.5) 26.7 4973 3678 (42) 283.6
Other rocerves:
Business
comb, under Other Capita! Total other Retained
Hedging commen conol reserves contribution regerves eamings Total
Group - atfributable to awners of the parent Company £m £m £m £m £m Em
At 1 Jdy 2019 04 (78.5) 28 4173 365.0 308.5 871.5
Impoct of adepton of IFRS 16 - - B - - 27 27
Retsement benefit abigation actuarial loss . . . . - 48 48
Taxation on retirement benefil cbiigation octuarial gain . . . . . . .
Cath flaw hedges - (losses) gains arising in the year 1.8) . . - (1.8) . (1.8)
Taxation on cash flow hedges 0.2 . B - 0.2 - 02
Long term incentive plan charge - - . . - (1.8) (1.6}
Currency tanslation differences - - 0.5 - 05 - 05
(Loss) for the yoar - - - - - (234.1) {234.1)
At 28 June 2020 {1.2) {76.5) 24.3 417.3 36838 783 442.2
Inciuded within ather reserves are cumudative exchange gains of £25.7m (2020: £23.3m) and gains on the fais vakue of cash flow hedges of £1.0m (2020: £1.0m).
Other reserves:
Capital Total other Retained
Hedging Other contribution ragerves eamings Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 29 June 2020 (r.0) (18.9) 409.5 389.6 168.6 558.2
(Loss) for the year - - . . (97.6) (97.8)
Long tarm incentive plan charge - B - - ©.2) (6.2)
Avising on Buginess Combinations undes common control - - 370 370 - 7.0
Cath flow hedges - (losses) arising in the year 14 - - 1.4 . 1.4
Taxation on cash flow hedges ©0.2) - - 0.2) . ©.2)
Retremen benefit obigation actuarial gain - - - - 151 15.1
Toxation on retirement benefil obligation actuntin gain - - - - (28) (28)
AL4 Juty 2021 0.2 {18.9) 446.5 4278 81.1 508.9
. Other razervas;
Capital Total other Retained
Hedging Other contribution reserves eamings Total
Company £m £&m £m £m £m Em
At huty 2019 00 (18.9) 409.5 390.6 2017 5923
Profit for the year - - - . (41.8) (41.8)
Long term incentive plan chargs - - . - .1 (1.1)
Cash fiow hedges - (losses) arising in the ysar {1.2) - - (1.2) - 1.2)
Taxation on cash flow hedges 6.2 . . 0.2 . 0.2
Retrement benefi abgation actuarial gain . . - - 8.1 81
Taxation on retirement benefit obligation actuarial gain N . . - (0.5) (0.5)
At 28 June 2020 [1.0) {18.9) 409.5 3898 368.8 558.2
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22. Rosarves (continuod)

Other reserves indude a credit of £10.9 m (2020: £10.9m) in respect of the differences between the nominal vakue and fair value of shares issued for the acquisition of subsidiary companies and losses of £29.6m (2020:
£29.6m) in respect of the differences between the fair vakie and book value of assets hived up from a subsidiary undertaking. Also inchuded within other reserves are cumidative exchange losses of £0.2 m (2020: £0.2m).

23, Cash gonorated from oparations

Reconciliation of grofit beforo taxation to cash genorated from operations

Group Company
For the yoar For the year For tho yoar For the year
ondod 4 July  ended 28 June ended 4 July  ended 28 June
2021 2020 2021 2020
€m £m £m £m
(lo33) / Profit before taxation 217.8) (234.6) (127.6)
Adjustments for:
- Finance income {13.9) (13.0) (18.9}
- Finance costs. 27 238 215
Oepreciation charges. 91.8 107.5 40.5
ion and impai of i 189 6.6 . 0.9
Retrement benefit contributions paid . 42) (58) (4.9)
Losa on sale of property, piant and equipment 43 7.7 ©.2)
Decroaze / (Increase) in inventories (1.3) 310 22
(tncrease) / Decrease in trade and other receivables (212.0) 1735 (68.3)
(Decrouzs) ! increase in rade and other payablas 2769 (138.7) 2089
Cash generated from operatons (336) 142 513 88
24, and directors’
Group Company
Fortheyear  For tho yoar For tho yaar For the year
anded 4 July  ondod 28 Juno ended 4 July  ended 28 June
Average monthty number of peopls employed by the Group and Company dwing the year: 2021 2020 2021 2020
Number Number Numbor Number
Distribution, manufacturing and selling 10,524 11,815 4,992 5,497
inigtati 1,373 1678 509 589
11,897 12.283 5,501 8.088
Growp Company
For tha year For the year For the year For the year
onded 4 July  endoed 28 June ondod 4 July  ended 28 June
2021 2020 2021 2020
£m £m £m £m
The costs incurred in respect of these employees wero:
Wages and calaries M72 404.0 1558 188.7
Sociat secuity costs 7 8.8 174 188
Dofined benefit pension (credit) / costs 238 (0.9) 08
Defined contribution pension costs (note 17) 13.4 17.0 14.0 13.2
443.1 503.7 186.9 2215
Koy managomont componsation
: For the yoar For the year
onded 4 July  ended 28 June
2024 2020
£m £m
Solories and shost-term benefit 20 22
£ benefits 0.1 0.1
2.1 23

The key management figures given above inctuds directors, The Group considers key management to be those persans who have the authority and responsibiity for planning, directing and cortroling the activites of the
Group,
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24, and directors’

Dlroctors’ emohmmants

For the year For the year
ondod 4 July  ended 28 Jure
2021 2020
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 1,954 2151
Company pension contiibutions to money purchase schemes 73 8
Retirsment benefits are accruing t 1 (2020; 2) directors under maney puichase pension amangements anly,
Emoluments paid to the highest paid director are a3 follows:
Aggregate emoluments and benefits 848 1,054
Company pention contiibutions to money purchase schemes . .
in the year ended 4 July 2021 Optisns and performance share unds were granted to the Directors with a grant-date vake of £1,924k (2020: £6.434k).
25. Equity sottlod sharg schome
Sysoo C ion provide 8 zh: payment to Brakes under the Sysco Omnibus Incentive Plan (2018 Plan) and certain employees of Brakes Group have been awarded Sysco stock options,

i3
restricted stock unts and performance chare urits (PSUs) under this 2018 Plan,

Vasting requizements for awarda under the 2018 Plan vary by individual grant and may includs either time-based vasting or time-based vesting subject to acceleration based on perdarmance criteria for fiscal periods of at least
one yoar. The contractual fife of al aptiona granted under the 2018 Pian ara and will be no greater than ten years.

The stock option awards are subject to graded vesting aver a requiite service periad with compensation recogniced on o straight-tine bai aver the requisite tervice period over the duration of the award.

Dusing the year 80,731 (2020: 30,630) restricted stock unita were granted to Brakes employees which will vest rateably over a thrao-your period. The weighted average grant-date fair vahue per resticted stock unit granted in
the pesiod was US$71.56 (2020: US$72.60).

During the year, 53,896 PSUs (2020: 45,175) wero aranted to Brakes emplovees, theze will canvert into shares of Sysco common stock at the end of the two-vear performance oeriod based on actual performance taraots
ochioved, 03 well 83 the market-based return of Sysco's common stock relative to that of each company within the S&P 500 index. The weighted averoge grant-date fair value per PSU granted in the year wos US$58.08 (2020:
USS72.67).

The fair value of each option is estimated o3 of the date of grani using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. Expected dividend yield is estimated based on the historical pattern of dividends and the average stock price for the
year preceding the option grani. Expected volaliity is based on histarical volaliity of Sysco’s stock, implied volatiites from traded options on Sysco's stock and other factors. The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of
the option is based on the US Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant. Syaco uzes historical data to estimate optit ise and employes termination behaviour within the vahsation model.

The weighted average assumptions discussed obove are noted below:

For tho yoor For the year
ondod 4 July ended 28 June
Group and company i 2021 2020
Dividend yield 27% 2.4%
Expected volatdty 21% 18.3%
Risk-free interest rate 0.5% 1.5%
Expected fife. 7.0 yoars 2.0 years
The fallowing share based payment anangements took place during the year endod 4 July 202} and existed at the year and;
For the yoar ondod 4 July 2021 For the year endod 28 June 2020
Woightod Weighted
Number of averago Number of chare  average exarcise
Group and Company sharo options_ exurcise prico options rice
Outstanding ot beginning of year 481,234 $68.50 412,101 $60.52
Granted during the year 134,912 $58.08 196,359 $72.80
Exercised during the year (60,717) $62.99 (114,104) $52.47
Forfeited during the year (57.778) $65.25 (13,322) I
Outstanding ot end of the period i 497,651 $68.50 481.234 $68.50
Vastod o axpected to vest a3 of 4 July 2021 / 28 June 2020 269,524 $66.98 472,789 $68.43
Exsreisable at the end of the period 273,089 366.48 113.481 $83 .09

The total share-based compensation cost included within operating expenses in the Group for the year endod 4 July 2021 was £3.9m (2020: £1.6m), with a corresponding capital contribution within equity. An intercompany
Eabilty is recognised on the batance sheet for the amount payable to Sysco Corporation of £5.4m (2020: £2.8m) in respect of the above scheme.

26, Commitmeonts

Group Company
Atd July 2021 A28 June 2020 At 4 July 2021 At 28 June 2020
£m £m £m £m
Contracted for bul not provided 8.4 12.8 78 1s
C inthe Group ling to £5.5 m (2020: £8.5m} is in respect of motor vehicles and £2.9 m (2020: £4.3m) is in respect of plant and machinery, [T hardware and software.
[~ inthe Company uring to £5,5 m (2020: £7.3m) is in respect of motar vehicles and £2.4 m (2020: £4,2m) is in respect of piant and machinery, T hardware and software.
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27. Rolatod party transactions

During the year the Company continued to provide and receive funding to and from othes group jes, and has o1zo into certain other with other in the Sysco C group. Details of these
transactions ate as folows:
For the yoar For the year
endod 4 July ended 28 June
2021 2020
£m £m
Loans owed by parent undertakings 2247 2208
Loans owed by subsidiary undertskings R 169.8
Lozns awed to porent undertakings (119.8) (126.0)
Loans owned to group undertahinga (132.1) (1321}
Amounts owed by parent undertakings 16.7 480.0
Amounts owed by retated undertakings 0.4 13
Teade and other poyables owed to parent undertakings (161.2) (13.5)
Trode and other payables owed to group undestakinga (88.9) (143.4)
Trade and other recen owed by subsidiary 57.4 1019
Interest payable to parent undestahings {5.5) 8.3}
Debt poyable to parent 02) (1.4)
Interest payabls to cubsidiary undertakings (19) (7.9)
Interest receivable from subsidiary undertahings 57 9.0
Interest receivable from parent undertakings 129 128
Sales to cubsidiary undertokings 22 1.2
Sales to Sysco Corporation growp undertakings. - 14,0
Purchases from subsidiary undertakings w7 64.3
Purchsses from Sysco Cotpotation group 08 0.1

None of the batances owed to or by parent undertakings, subsidiory undestakings of associates are cecured,
Key management compentation i disclosed in nots 24, retirement benefit obigations are disclased in nats 17,

28. Governmoant Grants

The Campany and Group are recipients of Government Grants in respect of the subsidisation of wages 85 8 result of staff being furioughed 83 a resull of the impact of Covid-19. In tho year ended 4 July 2021 the group has
recarded gran income of £38.1m (2020: £26.3m) in respect of 4,143 employees fram the relevant Govemmeni schemes, At 4 July 2021 £6m (2020; £17.4m) of these expected receipts vre ouistanding and included in other

receivables.
2. Ultimato paront company and controlling party
The immediate parent undertaking is Brake Bros Hokiing | Limited, a company incorporated i the United Kingdom.

The Company's uiimate parent undertaking and controliing party is Sysco Corporation, 8 company incorporated in the United States,

The parent undertaking of the smaflest and largesi group to thece financia) is Sysco ion, Copies of Sysco Corporation’s group financial statements can be obtained from 1380 Enclave Parkway,

Houston, Texas, United states.

30. Post balanco shoot avents

On 15t September 2021, Broke Brog Limited acquired Medina Quay Meats Limited.

No other material events have occurred since the statement of financial pasition date which would affect the financial statements of the Company or Group,
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